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KCL LIMITED
(Formerly Known as Khemka Containers Limited)

NOTICE
Notice is hereby given that the 36" Annual General Meeting of KCL Limited (CIN:
L74899DL1983PLC068008) will be held on Monday, September 30t 2019 at 01.00 P.M at
the Registered Office of the company Situated at E-292, Sarita Vihar, New Delhi - 110044
to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

e To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019,
statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that date and the Reports of the
Directors and Auditors thereon.

e To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rajeev Khemka (holding DIN No: 00103260),
who retires by rotation, and being eligible offers himself for reappointment.

e To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Deeptanshu Khemka (holding DIN No:
07484360), who retires by rotation, and being eligible offers himself for
reappointment.

e To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following
resolution as a Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 139 and other applicable provisions if any of
the Act and the Rules made there under (including any statutory modification(s) or
re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), M/s Rohit Baid & Co., Chartered
Accountants, Faridabad, bearing Firm Registration No 031122N with Institute of
Chartered Accountant of India be and is hereby appointed as the Statutory Auditor
of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of the Annual General Meeting
for the financial year 18-19 to the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the
conclusion of next Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2020, subject to
ratification by the Shareholders at every subsequent Annual General Meeting and
to authorize the Board of Directors of the company to fix their remuneration.”.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Rajeev Khemka, Director cum CFO of the Company
be and is hereby authorized to do all such actions as may be required to give effect
to the aforesaid resolution.
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By Order of the Board

For KCL LIMITED
Date: (Amit Aggarwal)
Place: Company Secretary

NOTES:

1.

L

B

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO
APPOINT A PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY
NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE INSTRUMENT OF PROXY IN
ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE SHOULD BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF
THE COMPANY NOT LATER THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE MEETING. BLANK PROXY
FORM IS GIVEN IN THE ANNUAL REPORT.

A PERSON CAN ACT AS A PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING 50
(FIFTY) AND HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN 10% OF THE TOTAL
SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY. A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN 10% OF THE
TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY MAY APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON AS
PROXY AND SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON
OR SHAREHOLDER.

Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representative(s) to attend
the meeting are requested to send a certified copy of Board Resolution
authorizing their representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf at the
meeting.

. The Instrument appointing the proxy, duly completed shall be deposited at the

Company’s registered office address not less than 48 hours before the
commencement of the meeting. A proxy form for the AGM is enclosed.

In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, the Member whose name appears
as the first holder in the order of names as per the Register of Members of the
Company will be entitled to vote.

The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company remain
closed from Tuesday 24™ to Monday 30%™ September, 2019 for the purpose of
AGM.

Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and statutory
registers are open for inspection by the Members at the Company’s Registered
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Office on all working days between 14:00 -16:00 hrs up to the date of the
meeting and will be available for inspection at the AGM.

Members seeking any information with regard to the Accounts are requested to

write to the Company at an early date, so as to enable the Management to keep
the information ready at the meeting.

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has taken a “Green Initiative in the Corporate

Governance” by allowing paperless compliances by the companies and has
issued circulars stating that service of notice/documents including Annual Report
can be sent by e-mail to its members. To support this green initiative of the
Government in full measure, members are requested to register their e-mail
addresses in respect of electronic holdings with the Depository through their
concerned Depository Participants.

In terms of Section 152 of the Act, Mr. Rajeev Khemka and Mr. Deeptanshu
Khemka, Directors, retire by rotation at the Meeting and being eligible, offer
themselves for reappointment. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of
the Board of Directors and the Board of Directors of the Company recommend
their respective re-appointments.

Mr. Rajeev Khemka and Mr. Deeptanshu Khemka are interested in the Ordinary
Resolutions set out at Item Nos. 2 and 3 respectively, of the Notice with regard to
their re-appointment. Mr. Ashish Khemka Director, being related to Mr. Rajeev
Khemka may be deemed to be interested in the resolution set out at Item No. 2
of the Notice. Mr. Sanjeev Khemka, Director, being related to Mr. Deeptanshu
Khemka may be deemed to be interested in the resolution set out at Item No. 3
of the Notice. Save and except the above, none of the Directors / Key Managerial
Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or
interested, financially or otherwise, in the Ordinary Business set out under Item
Nos. 1 to 4 of the Notice

Details of Directors retiring by rotation / seeking appointment / re-appointment
at the ensuing Meeting are provided in the “Annexure A” to the Notice pursuant
to the provisions of (i) the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and (ii) Secretarial
Standard on General Meetings (“SS-2”), issued by the Institute of Company
Secretaries of India.

The Route map and landmark are enclosed with this notice.
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The Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report 2018-19 is being sent by
electronic mode to those Members whose e-mail addresses are registered with
the Company/Depositories, unless any Member has requested for a physical copy
of the same. For Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses,
physical copies are being sent by the permitted mode.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and
the Rules framed thereunder and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Members are provided with
the facility to cast their vote electronically, through the e-voting services
provided by NSDL, on all the resolutions set forth in this Notice. In order to
enable its Members, who do not have the access to e-voting facility to send their
assent or dissent in writing in respect of the resolutions as set out in this Notice,
the Company is enclosing a Ballot Form with the Notice. Instructions for Ballot
Form are given at the back of the said form and instructions for e-voting are
given here in below. Resolution(s) passed by Members through Ballot Forms or
e-voting is / are deemed to have been passed as if they have been passed at the
AGM.

Members may also note that the Notice of the 36" AGM and the Annual Report
2018-19 will be available on the Company’s website, http://www.kcl.co.in. The
physical copies of the documents will also be available at the Company’s
Corporate office for inspection during normal business hours on working days.
Members who require communication in physical form in addition to
e-communication, or have any other queries, may write to us at: Plot No 297,
Sector-24 Faridabad, Haryana.

Additional information, pursuant to Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, in respect of the directors
seeking appointment / re-appointment at the AGM, is furnished as annexure to
the Notice. The directors have furnished consent / declaration for their
appointment / re-appointment as required under the Companies Act, 2013 and
the Rules thereunder.

Mr. Vikas Kumar Verma, Partner, M/s. Vikas Verma & Associates, Practicing
Company Secretaries (Membership No. FCS .9192, has been appointed as the
Scrutinizer to scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting process (including the
Ballot Form received from the Members who do not have access to the e-voting
process) in a fair and transparent manner.

The Members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting or by ballot form prior
to the meeting may also attend the meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their
vote again.
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The facility for voting, either through electronic voting system or ballot or polling
paper shall also be made available at the meeting and Members attending the
meeting who have not already cast their vote by remote e-voting or by ballot
form shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting.

Members can opt for only one mode of voting, i.e., either by Ballot Form or
e-voting. In case Members cast their votes through both the modes, voting done
by e-voting shall prevail and votes cast through Ballot Form shall be treated as
invalid.

A member who has not received the Postal Ballot Form may request the
Company for a duplicate form. The Postal Ballot Form/duplicate Postal Ballot
Form duly completed in all respects, enclosed in self addressed, postage pre-paid
envelop should reach the Scrutinizer before 05.00 P.M. on 29t September, 2019.
The Postal Ballot received after the said date will be treated as not having been
received.

The instructions for e-voting through electronic means are as under-

In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule
20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended
by the Companies (Management and Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015
and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements),
Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide members facility to
exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at the
Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and the business may be
transacted through e-Voting Services. The facility of casting the votes by the
members using an electronic voting system from a place other than venue of the
AGM (“remote e-voting”) will be provided by National Securities Depository
Limited (NSDL).

The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM
and the members attending the meeting who have not cast their vote by remote
e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting through ballot paper.

The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may
also attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.

The remote e-voting period commences on 27th September, 2019 (9:00 am) and
ends on 29th September, 2019 (5:00 pm). During this period members’ of the
Company, holding shares either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on
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the cut-off date of 23™ September, 2019, may cast their vote by remote
e-voting. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting
thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, the member
shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.

e The process and manner for remote e-voting are as under:

In case a Member receives an email from NSDL [for members whose email IDs
are registered with the Company/Depository Participants(s)] :

(i) Open email and open PDF file viz; “remote e-voting.pdf” with your
Client ID or Folio No. as password. The said PDF file contains your user
ID and password/PIN for remote e-voting. Please note that the
password is an initial password. If you are already registered with NSDL
for e-Voting then you can use your existing user ID and password.

(i) Launch internet browser by typing the following URL:
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/

(iii) Click on Shareholder - Login

(iv) Put your user ID and password. Click Login.

(v) Password change menu appears. Change the password/PIN with new
password of your choice with minimum 8 digits/characters or
combination thereof. Note new password. It is strongly recommended
not to share your password with any other person and take utmost

care to keep your password confidential.

(vi) Home page of remote e-voting opens. Click on remote e-voting: Active
Voting Cycles.

(vii) Select “EVEN” of “M/s KCL Limited”.
(viii)Now you are ready for remote e-voting as Cast Vote page opens.

(ix) Cast your vote by selecting appropriate option and click on “Submit”
and also “Confirm” when prompted.

(x) Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be
displayed.

(xi)Once you have voted on the resolution, you will not be allowed to
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modify your vote.

(xii) Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.)
are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant
Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. together with attested
specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are
authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer through e-mail to
vikasverma@vvanda.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in

® In case a Member receives physical copy of the Notice of AGM ([for
members whose email IDs are not registered with the
Company/Depository Participants(s) or requesting physical copy] :

a. Initial password is provided as below/at the bottom of the
Attendance Slip for the AGM:

EVEN (Remote e-voting Event Number) USER ID /PASSWORD/PIN

b. Please follow all steps from Sl. No. (ii) to SI. No. (xii) above, to cast
vote.

e In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs)
for Members and remote e-voting user manual for Members available at
the downloads section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.:
1800-222-990.

e If you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then you can
use your existing user ID and password/PIN for casting your vote.

NOTE: Shareholders who forgot the User Details/Password can use “Forgot User

Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on

www.evoting.nsdl.com.

In case Shareholders are holding shares in demat mode, USER-ID is the

combination of (DPID+ClientID).

In case Shareholders are holding shares in physical mode, USER-ID is the
combination of (Even No+Folio No).

e You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile
details of the folio which may be used for sending future
communication(s).

e The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the

paid up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date of 23
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September 20109.

e Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become member of
the Company after dispatch of the notice and holding shares as of the
cut-off date i.e. 23 September 2019, may obtain the login ID and
password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or Issuer/RTA.

However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then
you can use your existing user ID and password for casting your vote. If
you forgot your password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot
User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or contact NSDL at the following toll
free no.: 1800-222-990.

e A member may participate in the AGM even after exercising his right to
vote through remote e-voting but shall not be allowed to vote again at
the AGM.

. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the
register of beneficial owners maintained by the depositories as on the
cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting as
well as voting at the AGM through ballot paper.

e Mr. Vikas Kumar Verma, Practicing Company Secretary (Membership No.
FCS: 9192) has been appointed as the Scrutinizer for providing facility to
the members of the Company to scrutinize the voting and remote
e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.

. The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the
resolutions on which voting is to be held, allow voting with the assistance
of scrutinizer, by use of “remote e-voting” or “Ballot Paper” or “Poling
Paper” for all those members who are present at the AGM but have not
cast their votes by availing the remote e-voting facility.

e The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting,
will first count the votes cast at the meeting and thereafter unblock the
votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least two
witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall make, not
later than three days of the conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated
scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any, to
the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing, who shall
countersign the same and declare the result of the voting forthwith.
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e The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be
placed on the website of the Company www.kcl.co.in and on the website
of NSDL immediately after the declaration of result by the Chairman or a
person authorized by him in writing. The results shall also be immediately
forwarded to the Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited, Mumbai.

Other Instructions:

The voting rights of shareholders shall be in proportion to their shares of the
paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date of 23"
September 2019

A person, whose name is recorded in the Register of Members or in the register of
beneficial owners maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date, i.e 23"
September 2019 only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting /
voting at AGM.

Any person, who acquires shares and become Member of the Company after the
dispatch of the notice and holds shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 23" September
2019 may obtain the login ID and password in the manner mentioned above.
However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then you can
use your existing user ID and password for casting your vote. If you forget your
password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot User Details / Password”
option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

The remote e-voting period will commence on Friday, 27t" September, 2019 (9.00
A.M.) and ends on Sunday, 29" September, 2019 (5.00 P.M.). The e-voting
module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a
resolution is cast by the Member, he/she shall not be allowed to change it
subsequently or cast the vote again.

The Scrutinizer(s) shall immediately after the conclusion of voting at the Meeting,
count the votes cast at the Meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast
through remote e-voting in the presence of at least 2 (two) witnesses not in the
employment of the Company. The Scrutinizer(s) shall submit a consolidated
Scrutinizers’ Report of the votes cast in favour or against, if any, not later than 3
(Three) days of conclusion of the Meeting to the Chairman or a person
authorized by him in writing who shall countersign the same. The Chairman or
any other person authorized by him in writing shall declare the results of the
voting forthwith.

12
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The Result declared along with the Scrutinizers’ Report shall be placed on the
Company’s website: www.kcl.co.in and on the website of NSDL immediately after
the results are declared by the Chairman or any other person authorized by him
and the Company shall, simultaneously, forward the results to the concerned
Stock exchange where its equity shares are listed.

By Order of the Board
For KCL LIMITED

Date: (Amit Aggarwal)
Place: Company Secretary

13
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Annexure-A

Details of Directors Retiring By Rotation/ Seeking Appointment/Re-Appointment At
The Ensuing Annual General Meeting

Name of Directors Rajeev Khemka Deeptanshu Khemka

Age 51 28

Qualifications B.Com B.tech from UK and MBA from
Mumbai

Experience (including 30 Years of vide 4 years

expertise in specific
functional area)/Brief
Resume

experience in Financial
matters and Production

Terms and Conditions
of Appointment
/Reappointment

As per the agreement

As per the agreement

Remuneration last drawn
(including sitting fees, if
any)

325000

200000

Date of first
appointment on the Board

30/09/1985

08/03/2016

Shareholding in
the Company as on March
31,2019

246325

12000

Relationship with other
Directors / Key
Managerial Personnel

Brother of Ashish Khemka

Son of Rajeev Khemka.

Number of meetings of the
Board attended
during the year

6 (Six)

6 (Six)

Directorships of other
Boards as on March 31,
2019

Nil

Nil

Membership /
Chairmanship of
Committees of other
Boards as on March
31,2019

Member in CSR
Committee.

Nil

14
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT

To
The Members,

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 36" Annual Report of the Company together with
the Audited Accounts for the financial year ended on March 31, 2019.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors, to the best of
their knowledge and ability, hereby state and confirm that:

The Financial Statements of the Company - comprising of the Balance Sheet as at 31st March,
2019 and the Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended on that date, have been prepared on
a going concern basis;
in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been
followed along-with the proper explanation and there are no material departures;
the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the company at the end of the Financial Year and of the profit and loss of
the company for that period;
the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the company
and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;
the internal financial controls to be followed by the Company were laid down and such internal
financial controls are adequate and operating effectively; and

the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Comparative financial statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2019, forming
part of this Annual Report, have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) as notified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. On that basis, our sales
increased to Rs 261.86 Crores for the current year as against Rs 233.89 crores in the previous
year. Our net profits increased to Rs 3.72 Crores for the current year as against Rs 3.59 Crores in
the previous year.

Key highlights of financial performance of your Company for the financial year 2018-19 are
provided below:
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(Rs. In Lacs)

Particulars 31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018
Revenue from Operations 26153.70 23346.49
Other Income 32.66 43.10
Total Revenue 26186.36 23389.59
Less: Expenditure 25757.62 22858.71
Profit Before Tax for the Year 428.74 530.88
Tax Expenses 55.85 171.61
Net Profit After Tax for the Year 372.88 359.26
Other Comprehensive Income 7.51 (1.33)
Total Comprehensive income for the‘ 380.39 357.93
year

Subsidiary Companies, Joint Venture and Consolidated Financial Statements
During the period under review the Company does not have any Subsidiary.

RESERVES

Your company has transferred profits of Rs. 2 Crore to General reserve.

DIVIDEND

The Directors, keeping into consideration the ever broadening horizon and further cash flow
requirements for repayment of term loans and additional working capital needs of the company
do not recommend any dividend for the financial year 2018-2019.

Transfer to Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority

During the period under review, the company has not required to transfer any amount or shares
in IEPF authority.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS, IF ANY, AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF

THE COMPANY WHICH HAVE OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR OF THE

COMPANY TO WHICH THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT

There have been no material changes and commitments that have occurred after close of the
financial year till the date of this report which affect the financial position of the Company.

CHANGES IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY

There was no change in the nature of business of the Company during the financial year ended
March 31, 2019.

16
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DETAILS OF DIRECTORS OR KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL INCLUDING THOSE WHO WERE

APPOINTED OR HAVE RESIGNED DURING THE YEAR

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Shri Rajeev Khemka,
Whole-time Director and Mr. Deeptanshu Khemka, Whole time Director is due to retire by
rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, and being eligible, offers himself for
re-appointment.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

During the financial year 2018-2019, the Board of Directors of the Company, met (06) times on,
April 02" 2018, May 30th 2018, June 11th 2018, August 14th 2018, November 14th 2018 and
February 14th 2019.

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All the Independent Directors have submitted their disclosures to the Board that they fulfill all
the requirements as stipulated in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 so as to qualify
themselves to be appointed as Independent Directors under the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 and the relevant rules.

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY OF DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
AND OTHER EMPLOYEES

In adherence of section 178(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of Directors of the
Company approved a policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration including criteria for
determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence of a director and other matters
provided u/s 178(3), based on the recommendations of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee. The broad parameters covered under the Policy are — Company Philosophy, Guiding
Principles, Nomination of Directors, Remuneration of Directors, Nomination and Remuneration
of the Key Managerial Personnel

FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION

In line with the statutory requirements enshrined under the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board carried out a
performance evaluation of itself, its Committees, the Chairman and each of the other Directors.
As in previous year, this was carried out on the basis of framework approved by the Nomination
and Remuneration Committee. The Committee had unanimously consented for an ‘in-house’
review built on suggestive parameters. Based on the suggestive parameters approved by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the following evaluations were carried out:

® Review of Board as a whole by all the Members of the Board

® Review of all Board Committees by all the Members of the Board
® Review of Individual Directors by rest of the Board Members except the Director being

17



KCL LIMITED
(Formerly Known as Khemka Containers Limited)

evaluated

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

Extract of Annual Return Pursuant to Section 92(3) and Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act,
2013, extract of the Annual Return as on March 31, 2019 in form MGT-9 is enclosed as Annexure
| to this report.

AUDITORS

a) Statutory Auditors

As per Section 139 of the Companies Act, 2013 and based on the recommendations of the Audit
Committee and upon review of confirmations of satisfaction of criteria as specified in Section
141 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 4 of Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules, 2014
and in accordance with the approval accorded by the Members at the 36" Annual General
Meeting held on September 30, 2019, M/s Rohit Baid & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN
031122N, Faridabad, re-appointed as Statutory auditor to the conclusion of this AGM till the
conclusion of next AGM to held in the year 2020.

Pursuant to provisions of Section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Statutory Auditors
have not reported any incident of fraud to the Audit Committee during the year under review.

b) Secretarial Auditors
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with corresponding
Rules framed there under, M/s Vikas Verma & Associates were appointed as the Secretarial
Auditors of the Company to carry out the secretarial audit for the year ending March 31, 2019. A
Secretarial Audit Report given by the Secretarial Auditors in Form No. MR-3 is annexed with this
Report as ANNEXURE —II.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186

During the financial year ended March 31, 2019, no Loans, Investment or guarantee u/s 186 of
the Companies Act, 2013 was made by the Company

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The particulars of every contract and arrangement entered into by the Company with related
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain
arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto are disclosed in Form No. AOC-2 in
ANNEXURE — IlIl and form part of this Report.

DETAILS RELATING TO DEPOSITS COVERED UNDER CHAPTER V OF THE ACT

The Company has not accepted any deposits during the year under review.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 15(2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, compliance with the provisions of the Corporate Governance
are not applicable to the Companies having paid up equity share capital not exceeding Rs. 10
Crore and Net Worth not exceeding Rs. 25 Crore, as on the last day of previous financial year or
on the Companies listed on Stock Exchange.

In view of above, as per the latest Audited Financial Statement of the Company as at 31 March
2018, the paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company does not exceed the respective threshold
limit of Rs. 10 Crore as aforesaid; hence compliance with the provisions of the Corporate
Governance are not applicable to the Company. However the company (KCL) believes that the
governance practices must ensure adherence and enforcement of the sound principles of
Corporate Governance with the objectives of fairness, transparency, professionalism, trusteeship
and accountability, while facilitating effective management of the businesses and efficiency in
operations. The Board is committed to achieve and maintain highest standards of Corporate
Governance on an ongoing basis. A report on compliance with the principles of Corporate
Governance as prescribed under Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI Listing Regulations) is given below in
Annexure-1V

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

As part of its initiatives under “corporate social responsibility (CSR)”, the company has
contributed funds for the scheme of eradicating hunger & poverty, promotion of education. The
contributions in this regard have been made to the registered trusts & NGO’s which are
undertaking these schemes.

The Annual Report on CSR Activities is annexed herewith as : Annexure V

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY

The details in respect of internal financial control and their adequacy are included in the
Management Discussion & Analysis, which forms part of this report as Annexure- VI.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors of the Company has constituted Audit Committee u/s 177 of the
Companies Act,2013 consisting of 3 (Three) members Mr. Sunil Bansal Mr. Rahul Jain & Mrs.
Chandra Kala Khemka all of them being Independent Directors of the Company. Mr. Sunil Bansal
is the chairman of the audit committee.

The Company Secretary acts as the secretary to the audit committee. The primary objective of
the audit committee is to monitor and provide an effective supervision of the Management's
financial reporting process, to ensure accurate and timely disclosures, with the highest levels of
transparency, integrity and quality of financial reporting. The audit committee oversees the work
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carried out in the financial reporting process by the Management, the internal auditors and the
independent auditors, and notes the processes and safeguards employed by each of them. The
audit committee has the ultimate authority and responsibility to select, evaluate and, where
appropriate, replace the independent auditors in accordance with the law. All possible measures
must be taken by the audit committee to ensure the objectivity and independence of the
independent auditors.

All recommendations made by the audit committee during the year were accepted by the Board.

AUDIT COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE

The audit committee held 4 (four) meetings during the year ended March 31, 2019. These were
held on 30/05/2018, 14/08/2018, 14/11/2018 & 14/02/2019. The attendance details of the
audit committee meetings are as follows:

Names Of Directors

No. of Board Meeting held

No. of meetings attended

Mr. Sunil Bansal 4 4
Mr. Rahul Jain 4 4
Mrs Chandra Kala Khemka 4 4

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

The Board of the Company has formed a risk management committee to frame, implement and
monitor the risk management policy for the Company. The committee is responsible for
reviewing the risk management plan and ensuring its effectiveness. The audit committee has
additional oversight in the area of financial risks and controls. Major risks identified by the
businesses and functions are systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a
continuing basis. The development and implementation of risk management policy has been
covered in the corporate governance report, which forms part of this report.

DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN
FUTURE

There was no significant and material order passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals
impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

CREDIT RATINGS

During the year under review CRISIL, A SEBI, RBI & NSIC registered credit rating agency in India,
has assigned Bank rating BB for Long-term bank facilities and the Outlook of which is Stable
regarding timely servicing of financial obligations and A3+ for Short-term bank facilities.

Dun & Bradstreet, a US based information and business rating MNC has given and upgraded the

company’s rating to 5A2 from the previous 4A3, due to improved performance and business
metrics.
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LISTING OF SECURITIES

The shares of the Company are listed on the "Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India Limited"
(MSEI)

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGICAL ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE OUTGO

Conservation Of Energy:

1) The company has taken several effective steps to consumption of the electrical units.

2) The company is engaged in manufacturing of corrugated boxes and printed duplex board
cartons & breakfast cereals, which don’t fall in the schedule of industries requiring information
specified in the prescribed form. Hence the details of energy conservation have not been
furnished.

Technology absorption, adaption and innovation:

The company has adopted latest technologies, processes, designs and machineries to
manufacture Quality packaging products & breakfast cereals.

Research and Development (R&D):

The company has in house research and development facilities.

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo:

Foreign exchange earnings and outgo | 2018-19 2017-18

Earning for value of exports on F.O0.B | NIL NIL

basis

Expenditure in foreign currency :
e Raw Material 0 75507591
e Repairs & Maintenance(P&M) 4962162 4677055
e Capital Goods 114720940 33554341
e Traveling Expenses 12469140 12202820

Particulars of employees

Information as per Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Particulars of
Employees) Amendment Rules, 2011 are given in the statement which from a part of this report.

However as per the provisions of section 136 of the Companies Act, 2013, the report and
accounts are being sent to all shareholders of the Company excluding the aforesaid information.
Any shareholder interested in obtaining a copy of the particulars may write to the Company's
Registered Office.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Management discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under
Regulation 34 of the Listing Agreement, 2015 with the stock exchanges is presented as a
separate section forming part of this report.

DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items
as there were no transactions on these items during the year under review:-

e Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act.

e Issue of equity shares and differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.

e Issue of Shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any
scheme.

e No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals
which impact the going concern status and Company's operations in future.

e Company does not have any subsidiary.

ACKNOWLDGEMENTS

Your Directors place on record their sincere appreciation of the services rendered by the
employees of the Company. They are grateful to shareholders, bankers, depositors, customers
and vendors of the company for their continued valued support. The Directors look forward to a
bright future with confidence.

Date: 30.05.2019 By the order of the Board
Place Faridabad For M/s KCL Limited
SD/-

Shyam Sunder Khemka
Managing Director
Din No 00103387
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Annexure-|

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
(as on financial year ended on March, 31, 2018)
[Pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Company
(Management & Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

i) CIN: L74899DL1983PLC068008

ii) Registration Date: 21/01/1983

iii) Name of the Company: KCL LIMITED

iv) Category/ Sub-category of the Company: Company Limited By Shares/ Indian

Non-Government Company
v) Address of the Registered office & contact details E-292, Sarita Vihar, New Delhi-110044
E-mail: cs@kcl.co.in
Tel:  0120-2232417

vi) Whether listed company : Yes
vii) Name, Address & contact details of the
Registrar & Transfer Agent, if any. M/s Beetal Financial & Computer

Services Pvt Ltd.,
3rd Floor, 99 Madangir, BH-Local
Shopping Complex,
Near Dada Harsukhdas Mandir, New
Delhi-110062
Il.  PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall
be stated.

Sl. | Name & Description of NIC Code of the Product % to total turnover of the
No. | main products/services /service company
01 | Manufacturing of corrugated | 1702 95.56%

boxes, duplex cartons and
other containers.

lll. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sl. Name & Address CIN/GLN Holding/Subsidiary/ | % of Applicable
No of the Company Associate Shares | Section
Held
NIL
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\% SHAREHOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share capital Break up as % to total Equity)
Category of Shareholders |No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year| No. of Shares held at the end of the year % change during the
year
Demat Physical Total |%of Total| Demat Physical Total % of Total
Shares Shares
A.Pr S
(1) Indian
a) Individual/HUF 1186110 235800| 1421910 47.40( 1186110 235800( 1421910 47.40 N/A N/A
b) Central Govt.or
State Govt.
c) Bodies Corporates
d) Bank/FI
e) Any other 368600 21600| 390200 13.00 368600 21600 390200 13.01 N/A N/A
SUB TOTAL:(A) (1) 1554710 257400 1812110 60.40| 1554710 257400 1812110 60.41
(2) Foreign
a) NRI- Individuals N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
b) Other Individuals N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
c) Bodies Corp. N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
d) Banks/Fl N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
e) Any other... N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
SUB TOTAL (A) (2)
Total Shareholding of
Promoter
(A)= (A)1)HA)(2)
B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING
(1) Institutions
a) Mutual Funds N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
b) Banks/Fl N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
C) Cenntral govt N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
d) State Govt. N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
e) Venture Capital Fund N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
f) Insurance Companies N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
g) FIIS N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
h) Foreign Venture
Capital Funds N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
i) Others (specify) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
SUB TOTAL (B)(1):
(2) Non Institutions
a) Bodies corporates 1600 835800| 837400 27.91 1600 835800 837400 27.91 N/A N/A
i) Indian N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
i) Overseas N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
b) Individuals
i) Individual shareholders
holding nominal share
capital upto Rs.1 lakhs 8100 66800 74900 2.50 8100 66800 74900 2.50 N/A N/A
ii) Individuals shareholders
holding nominal share
capital in excess of Rs. 1
lakhs 275675 275675 9.19 275675 275675 9.19 N/A N/A
c) Others (specify)
Non Resident Indians
SUB TOTAL (B)(2): 9700| 1178275| 1187975 39.60 9700| 1178275| 1187975 39.60 N/A N/A
N/A N/A
Total Public Shareholding
(B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2) 9700| 1178275| 1187975 39.60 9700| 1178275| 1187975 39.60 N/A N/A
N/A N/A
C. Shares held by
Custodian for 24
GDRs & ADRs N/A N/A
N/A N/A
Grand Total (A+B+C) 1564410 1435675 3000085 39.60| 1564410 1435675 3000085 39.60 N/A N/A
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(ii) SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS
S| No. Shareholders Name Shareholding atthe Shareholding at the % change in
begginning of the year end of the year share holding
during the
year
NO of shares |% of total shares |% of shares pledged NO of shares |% of total shares |% of shares pledged
of the company | encumbered to total of the company | encumbered to
shares total shares
1|Mr.Shyam Sunder Khemka 526260 17.53 N/A 526260 17.53 N/A N/A
2|Mr. Sanjeev Khemka 264,875 8.83 N/A 264,875 8.83 N/A N/A
3|Mr. Rajeev Khemka 246325 8.21 N/A 246325 8.21 N/A N/A
4Mr. Ashish Khemka 331350 11.04 N/A 331350 11.04 N/A N/A
5|Mrs Vandna Khemka 77,600 2.59 N/A 77,600 2.59 N/A N/A
6|Mrs Vandana Khemka 75,500 2.51 N/A 75,500 2.51 N/A N/A
7|Mrs Chander Kala Khemka 390,200 13.06 N/A 390,200 13.06 N/A N/A
Total 1912110 63.77 1912110 63.77
(iii) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING ( SPECIFY IF THERE IS NO CHANGE)
Sl. No. Share holding at the beginning of | Cumulative Share holding during the
the Year year
No. of Shares |% of total shares |No of shares % of total
of the company shares of the
company
At the beginning of the year 1912110 63.77 N/A N/A
Date wise increase/decrease in
Promoters Share holding during
the year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc) N/A N/A
At the end of the year 1912110 63.77
(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Direcors, Promoters & Holders of GDRs & ADRs)
Sl. No Shareholding at the b of | Cumul Shareholding end of the
the year year
Top 10 Shareholders No.of shares | % of total shares No of shares % of total
of the company shares of the
(v) Shareholding of Directors & KMP
Sl. No Shareholding at the end of the | Cumulative Shareholding during the
year year
For Each of the Directors & KMP | No.of shares | % of total shares No of shares % of total
of the company shares of the
At the beginning of the year 1912110 63.77 N/A N/A
Date wise increase/decrease in
Promoters Share holding during
the year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease (e.g.
allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat
equity etc) N/A N/A
At the end of the year 1912110 63.77%
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VI PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPPOUNDING OF OFFENCES
Type Section of |Brief Details of Authority |Appeall
the Description |Penalty/Punish |(RD/NCLT/ |made if any
Companies ment/Compou |Court) (give details)
Act nding fees
imposed
A. COMPANY
Penalty N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Punishment N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Compounding N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
B. DIRECTORS
Penalty N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Punishment N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Compounding N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Punishment N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
Compounding N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
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Annexure-II

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31/03/2019

To,

The Members,

KCL LIMITED,

E-292, SARITA VIHAR,

NEW DELHI-110044

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory
provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by M/s KCL Limited
(hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the KCL Limited books, papers, minute books, forms and
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information
provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the
conduct of secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has,
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31% March, 2019 complied
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and
subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other
records maintained by KCL Limited for the financial year ended on 31%March, 2019,
according to the provisions of:

1. The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) andthe rules made
thereunder;

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder;

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment
and External Commercial Borrowings;

v.The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and
Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):-

Vi.
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The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares
and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 1992;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2009; (No transaction has been recorded during the
Audit Period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme)Guidelines, 1999;No rransaction has been
recorded during the Audit Period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share
Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993;

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)
Regulations, 2009;No transaction has been recorded during the Audit Period)

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations,
1998;(No transaction has been recorded during the Audit Period)

As informed to us the following other laws specifically applicable to the Company as
under and as confirmed & declared by the management, the Company has duly complied
the same:-

1.

ISARRANE N

The Employees Provident fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 along
with labour laws.

Employees State Insurance Act, 1948

Maternity Benefit Act, 1961

Payment Gratuity Act, 1972

Factories Act, 1949

Environmental Act, and its allied applicable laws

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

1. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

ii. The Listing Agreements/ Regulations including the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015entered into by the Company with Stock
Exchange(s).

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,

Rules,

Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above save and except the

following:-.
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(a) The listed entity has complied with the provisions of the above Regulations and

circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder, except in respect of matters specified below:-

Sr.No | Compliance Requirement | Deviations Observations/ Remarks
(Regulations/  circulars / of the Practicing
guidelines including specific Company Secretary
clause)

1. Regulation 13 of the SEBI | Delay in | For the Quarter ended
(Listing Obligations and | submitting 31*March, 2018-
Disclosure Requirements) | Statement of | Delayed by 1 day
Regulations, 2015 Investor

Complaintsfor the
Quarter ended
March, 2018

2. Regulation 33 of the SEBI | Delay in [1. For the Quarter ended
(Listing Obligations and | submitting 31%Dec, 2018- Delayed
Disclosure Requirements) | financial by 4 days
Regulations, 2015 statements along

with Limited 2. For the Quarter ended
Review  Report | 30%Sep, 2018- Delayed
for the following | by 6 days
quarter ended:
. For the Quarter ended
1. 315'Dec, 2018 30%June, 2018-
Delayed by 6 days
2. 30"Sep, 2018
4. For the Quarter ended
3. 30"June, 2018 31%March, 2018-
Delayed by 1 Month
4. 31% March, | &9 days
2018

3. Regulation 29 of the SEBI| Delay in giving | Delayed by two(2) days
(Listing Obligations and | prior intimation | for giving prior
Disclosure Requirements) | ofmeeting of the | intimation regarding
Regulations, 2015 Board of | Board Meeting to

Directors held on | consider and to take on
30"May, 2018 record inter alia, the
Audited Financial
Results for the fourth
quarter and year ended
on March 31, 2018.
4. Regulation 29 of the SEBI| Delay in giving | Delayed by One(1) days

(Listing Obligations and

prior intimation

for giving prior
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Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015

of meeting of the
Board of
Directors held on
August 14, 2018

intimation regarding
Board Meeting to
consider and to take on
record inter alia, the
un-audited Financial
Results for the quarter
ended on June 30, 2018.

Regulations, 2015

5. Regulation 30(1) and 30(2) of | Company has not | The Company has not
SEBI (Substantial Acquisition | filedthe = Annual | filedthe Annual
of Shares &  Takeovers) | Disclosure Disclosures as  per
Regulations, 2011 Regulation 30(1) and

30(2) of SEBI
(Substantial Acquisition
of Shares & Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011.

6. Regulation 17 to 19 of the SEBI | Composition of | Board and its
(Listing Obligations and | Board and its | Committeesare not duly
Disclosure Requirements) | Committees constituted as prescribed
Regulations, 2015 under Regulation 17 to

19 of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and
Disclosure
Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.

7. Regulation 46 of the SEBI | Website of the | Company website
(Listing Obligations and | Company https://www.kcl.co.inis
Disclosure Requirements) not maintained as per

Companies Act, 2013
and as per Regulation 46
of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and
Disclosure
Requirements)
Regulations, 2015

(b) Except as mentioned above, the listed entity has maintained proper records under the
provisions of the above Regulations and circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder

insofar as it appears from our examination of those records.

In addition to above there are following observation:-
Non compliance of Section 185 & 186 of the Companies Act: The Company
has given interest free loans/ advances to the related parties as defined in the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder and therefore have not complied
with the provisions of Section 185 & 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

1.
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We further report that:

In respect to other applicable laws specifically applicable to the Company, we have relied
on information / records / declaration / declaration produced / furnished by the Company
during the course of our audit and the reporting is limited to the extent.

Except as mentioned above, adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the
Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven daysin
advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at
the meeting.

All decisions of the Board were unanimous and the same are captured and recorded as
part of the minutes.

We further report that there is scope to improve the systems and processes in the company
and operations of theCompany to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws,
rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the period there were no specific instances / events
pursuance of the above referred laws,rules, regulations, guidelines, etc., having a major
bearing on the Company's affairs.

For VikasVerma& Associates
Company Secretaries

Vikas Kumar Verma
CP No. 10786
Membership No. F 9192

Date:-30-05-2019
Place:-New Delhi
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FORM NO.AOC-2

Annexure- II1

(Pursuant to Clause (1) of Sub-Section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule §(2) of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts / arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including
certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto:

Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: KCL
Limited has not entered into any contract or arrangement or transaction with its related parties
which is not at arm’s length during financial year 2018-19.

Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:
KCL Limited has entered into the following contract or arrangement or transaction with its
related parties which is at arm’s length during financial year 2018-19

Name of Nature of Duration of Salient terms of | Date(s) of | Amount
Related Party | contracts/ contracts/ contracts/ approval paid as
and Nature of | arrangeme arrangement/ arrangements/ by the advance

Relationship nt/ transactions transactions Board, if ,ifany
transaction including the any
s value, if any
FHS Rent Paid As per Contract 12,00,000 Nil
Wellness Foods | Purchases | As per Contract Nil Nil
and KCL Milk
Mr. Shyam | Rent Paid As per Contract 61,80,000 Nil
Sunder Khemka
and Mrs.
Chander Kala
Khemka

Place: Faridabad
Date: 30.05.2019

By the order of the board
For KCL Limited

(Rajeev Khemka)
Director
DIN: 00103260
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Annexure-IV

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT FOR THE YEAR 2018-19

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE

The Company’s philosophy on Code of Corporate Governance is based on the
following principles:

The members of the Board are persons in whom the shareholders have reposed their
confidence and trust. Persons appointed to the Board are conscious of their corporate
and social responsibilities and maintain highest standards of integrity.

Highest standards of compliance, disclosure and transparency are maintained by the
Company.

The company is committed to transparency in all its dealings and to provide high
quality products and services to its customers and shareholders and regulatory
compliance. The basic philosophy of corporate governance in the company is to
achieve business excellence and enhance shareholder’s value, keeping in view the
need and interest of shareholders.

A report on compliance with the principles of Corporate Governance as prescribed
under Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (SEBI Listing Regulations) is given below:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

As at March 31%, 2019, the Company has Eight Directors. Out of the Eight Directors,
five (i.e. 62.50%) are executive directors and Three (i.e.37.50%) are non-executive
and independent directors. All the three Non-Executive Directors are Independent
Directors and are free from any business or other relationship that could materially
influence their judgment. All the Independent Directors satisfy the criteria of
independence Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing Regulations.

The Board is well diversified and consists of one Woman Independent Director.

a) Appointment of Directors

As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Independent Directors shall be
appointed for not more than two terms of maximum of five years each and shall not
be liable to retire by rotation.

Your Board has adopted the provisions with respect to appointment and tenure of
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Independent Directors consistent with the Companies Act, 2013 and the Listing

Regulations. At the time of appointment of an Independent Director, the Company
issues a formal letter of appointment outlining his/her role, function, duties and
responsibilities as a Director.

Composition of the Board

Category of Directors No of Directors Percentage to total no of
Directors

Executive Director 5 62.5

Non-Executive 3 37.5

Independent Directors

Total 8 100

During the financial year under review, 6 (Six) meetings of the Board were held on
April 02" 2018, May 30th 2018, June 11th 2018, August 14th 2018, November 14th
2018 and February 14th 2019. The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings.

The maximum interval between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days

Name of | Category | Number of | Whether | Number of other | Committee
Direct of Board attended | Directorships Membership
Or Directorsh | meetings last AGM
ips during the
year 2018-19
Hel | Attended Chairm | Membe
d an r
Shyam Chairman 06 06 Yes Nil Nil Nil
Sunder M/Director
Khemka
Chander Non 06 06 Yes Nil Nil 3
Kala Executive
Khemka
Rajeev Director 06 06 Yes Nil 1 1
Khemka
Ashish Director 06 06 Yes Nil Nil Nil
Khemka
Sunil Non 04 04 Yes Nil 1 2
Bansal Executive
Rahul Jain | Non 06 06 Yes Nil Nil 0 3
Executive
Sanjeev Director 06 06 Yes Nil Nil Nil 1
Khemka
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Deeptansh | Director 06 06 Yes Nil Nil Nil
u Khemka

Nil

During the year a separate meeting of the independent Directors was held inter-alia to
review the Performance of non-independent directors and the board as a whole. The
Board periodically reviews compliance reports of all laws applicable to the Company,
prepared by the Company.

3. Committees of the board

a) Audit Committee

I The role of Audit Committee is as per Section 177 of the Companies Act 2013 read
with Regulation 18 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015

i1 The terms of reference of the audit committee are broadly as under:

Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of
its financial information to ensure that the financial statement is correct,
sufficient and credible;

Recommend the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of
auditors of the Company;

Approval of payment to statutory auditors for any other services rendered by
the statutory auditors;

Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and
auditors’ report thereon before submission to the board for approval, with
particular reference to:

(a) Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility
Statement to be included in the Board’s report in terms of clause (c) of
sub-section 3 of section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013

(b) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the
same

(c) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of
judgment by management

(d) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of
audit findings
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(e) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to

financial statements

(f) Disclosure of any related party transactions

(g) Qualifications in the draft audit report

Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements
before submission to the board for approval;

Reviewing with the management, the statement of uses / application of
funds

Review and monitor the auditors’ independence and performance, and
effectiveness of audit process;

Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company
with related parties;

Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is
necessary,

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal
auditors, adequacy of the internal control systems;

Establish a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report
genuine concerns in such manner as may be prescribed

Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the
structure of the internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the
official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and
frequency of internal audit;

Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow
up there on;

Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal
auditors into matters where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a
failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the
matter to the board;
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e Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the
nature and scope of audit as well as post-audit discussion to ascertain any

area of concern;

e (arrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference

of the audit committee;

e Oversee financial reporting controls and process for Procurement of

material;

e To mandatorily review the following information:

» Management discussion and analysis of financial condition and

results of operations;

» Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the

audit committee), submitted by management;

» Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued
by the statutory auditors;

» Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and

» The appointment and terms of remuneration of the internal auditor.

(i1).  The previous annual general meeting (AGM) of the Company was held on
September 29, 2018 and was attended by Mr. Sunil Bansal, Chairman of the

audit committee.

(iil).  The composition of the audit committee and the details of meetings attended

by its members are given below:

Non-Executive

Name Category Number of meetings
during the financial year
2018-19
Held Attended

Chander Kala Khemka Independent, 4 4
Non-Executive

Sunil Bansal Independent, 4 4
Non-Executive

Rahul Jain Independent, 4 4

Four audit committee meetings were held during the year and the gap between
two meetings did not exceed four months. The dates on which the said meetings
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were held are as follows: 30" May 2018, 14" August 2018, 14" November 2018,
and 14th February 2019. The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings.

b) Nomination and remuneration committee

e The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company is constituted in
line with the Regulations 19 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations read with Section 178
of the Companies Act, 2013.

e Recommend to the board the set up and composition of the board and its
committees. Including the “formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications,
positive attributes and independence of a director”. The committee will consider
periodically reviewing the composition of the board with the objective of achieving
an optimum balance of size, skills, independence, knowledge, age, gender and
experience.

e Formulation of criteria for evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board;

e Devising a policy on Board diversity;

e Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be
appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and

recommend to the Board their appointment and removal.

e Recommend to the board the remuneration policy for directors, executive team or
key managerial personnel as well as the rest of the employees.

e Shri Rahul Jain was designated as the Chairman of the Committee. During the year,
one meeting of the Nomination and Remuneration committee was held on 31%
December 2018. The composition of the nomination and remuneration committee
and the details of meetings attended by its members are given below:

Name Category Number of meetings
during the financial year
2018-19
Held Attended

Chander Kala Khemka Independent, 01 01
Non-Executive

Sunil Bansal Independent, 01 01
Non-Executive

Rahul Jain Independent, 01 01
Non-Executive

¢ Remuneration policy:

Remuneration policy in the Company is designed to create a high performance
culture. It enables the Company to attract, retain and motivate employees to
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achieve results. Our business model promotes customer centricity and requires
employee mobility to address project needs. The remuneration policy supports
such mobility through pay models that are compliant to local regulations. The
Company pays remuneration by way of salary, benefits, perquisites and
allowances.

Details of remuneration paid to Directors are as follows:

. Remuneration to Executive Directors:

Name of | Basic Allowa | Perquisit | Performance Provident | Total (P.M)
the salary | nces es Bonus/commissi | fund
Director on contributi

on
Shyam | 200000 | 125000 325000
Sunder
Khemka
Rajeev | 200000 | 125000 325000
Khemka
Sanjeev | 200000 | 125000 325000
Khemka
Ashish | 200000 | 125000 325000
Khemka

Term of office/ Service contract time period for each director: N/A

. Remuneration to Non-Executive directors :

Name of Director Sitting Fees Commission
Chander Kala Khemka N/A N/A
Rahul Jain N/A N/A
Sunil Bansal N/A N/A

¢) Stakeholders’ relationship committee

The Company had a shareholders / investors grievance committee of directors to
look into the redressal of complaints of investors such as transfer or credit of
shares, non-receipt of dividend / notices / annual reports, etc. The nomenclature
of the said committee was changed to stakeholders’ relationship committee in the
light of provisions of the Act and revised clause 49 of the Listing Agreement.

During the year, one meeting of the stakeholders’ relationship committee was

held on 31% March, 2019 .The composition of the Stakeholders’ Relationship
Committee and the details of meetings attended by its members are given below:
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Name Category Number of meetings
during the financial year
2018-19
Held Attended

Chander Kala Khemka Independent, 01 01
Non-Executive

Sunil Bansal Independent, 01 01
Non-Executive

Rahul Jain Independent, 01 01
Non-Executive

e Shri Rahul Jain was designated as the Chairman of the Committee.

e There were no complaints received from Shareholders during the year.

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was formed pursuant to section
135 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, to formulate and recommend to the Board, a
Corporate Social Responsibility Policy indicating the activities to be undertaken by
the Company as specified in Schedule VII to the Act, to recommend the amount of
expenditure to be incurred on such activities and to monitor the Corporate Social
Responsibility Policy of the Company from time to time.

The details of the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company have
also been disclosed in the Directors’ Report section of the Annual Report. The
composition of the committee is as under:

Name Category Number of meetings
during the financial year
2018-19
Held Attended
Mr. Rajeev Khemka Executive 02 02
Mr. Sanjeev Khemka Executive 02 02
Mr. Sunil Bansal Independent, Non-Executive 02 02

During the year, two meetings of the CSR committee was held on 23" May, 2018
and 27" March 2019. Mr. Rajeev Khemka was designated as the Chairman of the

Committee.

The responsibilities of the CSR Committee include:

e Formulating and recommending to the Board of Directors the CSR Policy and

indicating activities to be undertaken
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e Reviewing “social, political, economic and environmental trends that may have
a significant impact on the Company’s business activities and performance.”

e Reviewing and evaluating “management’s goals, initiatives and practices for
Social Responsibility” and “recommending goals, initiatives and practices for
Social Responsibility to the Board of Directors.

e Recommending the amount of expenditure for the CSR activities, and
e Monitoring CSR activities from time to time.

Average net profit of the company for last three financial years for the purpose of
computation of CSR: 9.61 Cr

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the Average Net profit for last three
years): Rs 19.23 lacs, But the company has contribute a total sum of Rs 24.48 lacs
under the CSR activities.

e¢) EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

The Board of Directors of the company has constituted a Committee namely
“Executive Committee” who will decide and carry the routine activities of the day
to day business and the role of the Executive Committee is to expeditiously decide
business matters of routine nature and implementation of strategic decisions of the
Board. The Committee functions within the approved framework and directions of
the Board. The Committee also performs other activities as per the terms of
reference of the Board. The Committee comprises 4 (four) Executive Directors.
The Company Secretary of the Company acts as Secretary to the Executive
Committee. The Composition of Executive

Committee as on 31st March, 2019, is given below:

Name of Member Designation Meetings Held Meeting Attended

Rajeev Khemka Chairman 13 13

Sanjeev Khemka Member 13 13

Ashish Khemka Member 13 13

Deeptanshu Khemka Member 13 13
General body meetings

¢ General meeting

® Annual general meeting:

Financial year

Venue

Date & Time

Special
Resolutions
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Passed
2015-16 E-292, Sarita Vihar, 30.09.2016, 11.30 Nil
New Delhi-110044 a.m.
2016-17 E-292, Sarita Vihar, 30.09.2017, 11.30 Nil
New Delhi-110044 a.m.
2017-18 E-292, Sarita Vihar, 29.09.2018, 01:00 Nil
New Delhi-110044 P.M.

® Extraordinary general meeting:

No extraordinary general meeting of the members was held during the year 2018-19.

e  Details of special resolution passed through postal ballot, the persons who
conducted the postal ballot exercise and details of the voting pattern.

During the year under review, no special resolution has been passed through the
exercise of postal ballot. None of the items to be transacted at the ensuing meeting is

required to be passed by postal ballot.

5. Disclosures :

Related Party Transactions

None of the transactions with any of the related parties were in conflict with the
interest of the Company.

Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, and strictures imposed on
the Company by the stock exchanges or the securities and exchange board of
India or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during
the last three years 2015-16, 2016-17 and 2017-18 respectively. However there
was delay in publication of the quarterly results and submission of LRR with the
Stock Exchange on account of changes in the accounting procedures and
implementation of IND AS on the listed companies.

The Company has not adopted a whistle blower policy and has established the
necessary vigil mechanism for employees and directors to report concerns about
unethical behavior. No person has been denied access to the chairman of the
audit committee.

The Company has fulfilled all the mandatory requirements as prescribed in
Annexure XII to the Clause 49 of the Listing Agreements entered into with the
Stock Exchanges.

6. Means of Communication

a. Quarterly Results:
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The Company publishes limited reviewed un-audited standalone financial results on a
quarterly basis. In respect of the fourth quarter, the Company publishes the audited
financial results for the complete financial year.

B Newspapers wherein results normally published:

The quarterly/ half-yearly/ annual financial results are published in English and Hindi.

7. General shareholder information

Date, Time and Venue of Shareholder’s

Meeting : Annual General Meeting

Meeting Day & Date : 30th Monday, September,
2019
Time : 01:00 P. M
Venue : E-292, Sarita Vihar, New
Delhi-110044

Financial Year 2018-19

Record Date 24% September 2019

Registered office

E-292, Sarita Vihar, New Delhi-110044,
Website: www.kel.co.in

CIN

L74899DL1983PLC068008

Listing on Stock Exchanges

Metropolitan Stock Exchange of India
Limited

Vibgyor Towers, 4th Floor, Plot No C-62,
Opp. Trident Hotel Bandra Kurla Complex,
Bandra (E), Mumbai — 400098, Trading
Symbol: KCLL.

The Listing fees for the financial year
2017-18 have been paid by the Company
within the stipulated time.

ISIN

INE061C01010

Registrar and Share Transfer Agent

BEETAL HOUSE, 3rd

Floor,99, Madangir, behind LSC, New
Delhi — 110062, Ph. 011-29961281-283
Fax 011-29961284

Share Transfer System

Presently, the share transfers which are received in physical form are processed and
the share certificates are returned within a period of 7 days from the date of receipt,
subject to the documents being valid and complete in all respects. The Board has
delegated the authority for approving transfer, transmission etc. of the Company’s
securities to the Shareholders’ Grievance Committee. The Company obtains from a
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Company Secretary in Practice, half yearly certificate of compliance with the share
transfer formalities as required under Regulations 40 of SEBI (LODR) Regulations

c¢) Shareholding as on March 31, 2019:

® Distribution of equity shareholding as on March 31, 2019:

SL Category | Shareholders No. of Shares
No
% age of Physical | Electroni | Total | %age of
No. Total form ¢ form Total
Shareholde Capital
rs
255
Up to | 255 86.15 N/A N/A 86.15
5000
2| 5001 to 13 4.39 13 4.39
10000 N/A N/A
31 10001 to | 4 1.35 4 1.35
20000 N/A N/A
4120001 to |3 1.01 3 1.01
30000 N/A N/A
5130001 to
40000 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A | N/A
6| 40001 to
50000 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A | N/A
7150001to |1 0.34 1 0.34
100000 N/A N/A
8| 100001 & |20 6.76 20 6.76
Above N/A N/A
Total 296 100
® Categories of equity shareholders as on March 31, 2019:
SL Category Number of
No equity Percentage
shares held of holding
1. Promoters 1812110 60.40
2 Mutual Funds NIL 0
3 Banks/FI NIL 0
4 Bodies corporate 837400 27.91
5 Individuals 350575 11.69
6 Non Resident Indians NIL 0
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| | Total | 3000085 | 100

d) Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any Convertible instruments,
conversion date and likely impact on equity

The Company has not issued any GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any convertible
instruments in the past and hence it is not applicable on the company.

12. Plant locations:
The Company's plant Located at:

a) Plot No. 275,276,297,298 and 135 Sector-24 Faridabad, Haryana

b) Plot No. 11B, Udyog vihar, Greater Noida, Uttar Pradesh

c¢) Baddi Division, Village Bir Pillasi, Tehsil Nalagarh, Distt. Solan, himachal
Pradesh

d) Bata Mandi, Ponta Sahib, Distt. Sirmour, H.P.

e) Cheyyar Unit, Plot No. 5 Sipcot Industrial Area, Chayyar, Chennai.

f) Sri City, 900 Rosewood Drive, Mopurupalli Village, Varadaiahpalm Mandal,
Chittoor, Andhra Pradesh.

13. Address for correspondence
Plot No. 297, sector-24, Faridabad, Haryana-121005

14. Declaration by the Managing Director under Schedule V of SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015

In accordance with Schedule V of SEBI (LODR) Regulations with the Stock
Exchanges, I hereby confirm that, all the Directors and the senior management

personnel of the Company have affirmed Compliance to their respective codes of

conduct, as applicable to them for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2019.

By the order of the board
Date:30/05/2019 For KCL Limited
Place: New Delhi Sd/-

(Chander Kala Khemka)Chairperson
& Independent Director
DIN - 00103355
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Annexure-V

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES
1. A brief outline of the company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or
programmes proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR
policy and projects or programmes:

The Company’s CSR policy is aimed at demonstrating care for the community through its
focus on education & skill development, health & wellness and environmental
sustainability including biodiversity, energy & water conservation. Also embedded in this
objective is support to the disadvantaged/marginalized cross section of the society by
providing opportunities to improve their quality of life.

2. The composition of the CSR committee:

Sl No. Name Designation
01 Mr. Rajeev Khemka Chairman
02 Mr. Sanjeev Khemka Member
03 Mr. Sunil Bansal Member

3. Average net profit of the company for last three financial years for the purpose of
computation of
CSR: 96193014Cr.

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent of the amount as in item 3 above):Rs
19,23,860/-

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year:
IV.Total amount to be spent for the financial year: Rs 24,48,700/-
V. Amount unspent: Nil
VI. Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year: Direct

6. In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of
the last three financial years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the
reasons for not spending the amount in its Board report.

During the financial year 2018-19, the Company worked on conceptualizing and
developing its CSR programme as per the guidelines prescribed in CSR rules under the
Companies Act 2013. In this period, long-term CSR projects will be initiated keeping in
mind the key focus areas of education, employability and entrepreneurship amongst the
identified geographies of local and remote areas.

During the year, the Company has setup its CSR governance, monitoring and evaluation
mechanism, CSR processes for project implementation and impact reporting.
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7. A responsibility statement of the CSR committee that the implementation and
monitoring of CSR
Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the Company.

We hereby declare that implementation and monitoring of the CSR policy are in
compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the Company.

Sd/- Sd/-
(Shyam Sunder Khemka) (Rajeev Khemka)
Managing Director Chairman, CSR Committee

We hereby declare that implementation and monitoring of the CSR policy are in
compliance with CSR objectives and policy of the Company.

Sd/- Sd/-
(Shyam Sunder Khemka) (Rajeev Khemka)
Managing Director Chairman, CSR Committee
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Annexure-vi

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

a) Industry Structure and Development:

Packaging is an ever growing industrial sector in our country. On account of development in
infrastructure, manufacturing, agriculture, service sector and change in life style of the people,
the growth in packaging industry has also shown a fast growth. Nowadays the modem retailing
channels such as supermarkets and hypermarkets is the main driver towards shifting to
packaged goods. As these modem retail outlets are better equipped to showcase packaged
products compared to India's traditional retail outlets, the role of packaging in influencing
purchasing decisions in-store is greatly increasing and this has made packaging an even more
important marketing tool than ever before. Demand for packaging of different types continued
to rise in India, out of which Paper-based packaging materials are behind some of the most
groundbreaking developments in the industry today. Paper and paper-based packaging is the
largest sector in the worldwide market for packaging the products like Electrical & Electronic
appliances, medicines, cosmetics, automolives etc. Similarly food products more particularly
healthy food & Breakfast cereals have shown a very significant growth through the retail market
channels as such food products also having good market potentiality.

b) Opportunities and threats:

KCL Limited is one of the leading and largest company in Paper Packaging and Printing Industry in
the Northern India. It has provided remarkable packaging solutions to a wide range of industry
like: consumer durables, white goods, FMC, apparel and footwear, fresh produce, engineering
and auto components, etc.

We believe that the following aspects of our business will help us to sustain our growth and grow
even faster in the times to come,

® Packaging solution to the larger clients.
® Modern and latest packaging & food processing machineries.
® Arange of healthy food products under the brand name "MURGINNS”,

Even with the consistent growth of packaging, printing & food industry, there are still some
difficulties faced by this industry;

® Risein Input costs

Lack of proper distribution channel

More marketing moving online

Competition with substitute forms of packaging international quality

Rapidly changing technology in printing & packaging industry

Very difficult to change taste of food products used by the customers

c) Segment wise Performance:

Company operations are focused in two primary Business Segments;
1. Packaging Products: Engaged in manufacturing of Corrugated boxes, Duplex boards &
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Printed Cartons situated at different locations.
2. Food Products : Engaged in manufacturing of Food products (Wafer sticks & Extruded cereals
products & ready to use bakery products).

The Packaging products have major contribution towards total Revenue. However the food
products are also picking up in the market.

d) Risk and Concerns:
eHuge investment on automatized machinery and R&D setup
e Competitive prices
e AdOption of latest quality processes and supply chains
eFood Products is a new Fine, which need more Publicity and Marketing.

e) Future Outlook:

e The future of the packaging market is certainly looking bright. Packaging is believed to be
the key method of communicating the value added benefits of a product to the consumers.

e Packaging product has regular demand from our existing clients and new customers have
aim shown their interest in our products on latest Corrugated/Printing Machinery and
locational benefits for supply to southern parts of the country.

e Food products have made tied with big brands like: Heinz, Nestle, Cadbury, Reliance etc, to
manufacture their products in their brand name.

f) Internal control systems and their adequacy:
The audit committee periodically reviews internal control system, which are designated to
ensure that the over head levels are reduced to the minimum.

The Company’s internal financial control systems are commensurate with its size and the nature
of its operations. These have been designed to provide reasonable assurance with regard to
recording and providing reliable financial and operational information, complying with applicable
statutes, safeguarding assets from unauthorized use, executing transactions with proper
authorization and ensuring compliance of corporate policies.

The audit committee deliberated with the members of the management, considered the systems
as laid down and met the statutory auditors to ascertain, inter alia, their views on the internal
financial control systems. The audit committee satisfied itself of the adequacy and effectiveness
of the internal financial control system as laid down and kept the board of directors informed.

g) Human resources/ industrial relations and Employee Base:

The company, with a total employee strength of 650 as of year ended 2018-19, continues to
accord high priority to human resource development. The human resource (HR) strategy is
focused on creating a performance-driven environment in the Company, where innovation is
encouraged, performance is recognized and employees are motivated to realize their potential.
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HR is the core of the Company, influencing change, building culture and capabilities. The HR
processes are continuously evolving and aligning with the changing business requirements. HR is
structured into the specialized business units to enable them respond better to the needs of
their customers and get more strategic advantage. The HR organization is equipped with
multicultural leaders capable to handle tremendous volatility in the economic, regulatory and
cultural sphere around the world.

h) Discussion on financial performance with respect to operational performance:

The Key features of the Company’s Financial performance for the year ended 31st March,
2019 are presented in the Financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and accounting principles generally accepted in
India, and in compliance with the accounting standards specified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, to the extent
applicable.

i) Cautionary Statements

Statements made in this report forming part of the disclosure related to management,
discussion and analysis describing the company’s objectives, projections, estimates and
expectations may be forward looking statements within the meaning of applicable securities
laws and regulations. Actual results could differ material from those expressed or implied.
Important factors that could influence the company’s operations include economic
developments within the country, demand and supply conditions in the industry, input prices,
finance costs, changes in government regulations, tax laws and other factors such as
industrial relations.

j) Acknowledgement

The directors of the company wish to express their appreciation for the continued
co-operation of the central and state governments, bankers, financial institutions, customers,
dealers and suppliers and all the valuable assistance received from the shareholders. The
directors also wish to thank all the employees of the company for their contribution, support
and continued co-operation throughout the year.
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ROHIT BAID & Co.

ﬁ'n Chartered Accountant

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF KCL LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Qpinion

1. We have audited the accompanying financial statements of KCL LIMITED {the ‘Company’), which
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
Other Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in
Equity for the year th.2n ended, and a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information

2. in our opinion and to the best of our information and accerding to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind
AS") specified under Section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs (financial position) of the
Company as at 31 March 2019, and its profit (financial performance including other
comprehensive income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that dat>

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section
143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAl') together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. \We believe that ine audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for ot oainian.

Address: 2B/49, NI T, Faridabad-121001
Ph. no. 91-9953450129
Email ID: rohithaid03@gmail.com




Key Audit Matters

4. Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the standalone financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereup, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters

5. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report.

Ke!;-' audit matter how our audit addressed the key audit matter

Refer Note 12.1 Time period of Loans given to | -Obtained an understanding of management’s
related parties is not defined / available, | assessed cash flow forecasts to ensure
therefore the samie has not been discounted in | consistency with current operations of the
accordance with Ind AS 109 - “Financial | Company and performed sensitivity analysis on
Instruments”. key assumptions used in management's
calculated recoverable value.

Considering the materiality of the amounts
involved, the significant management | -Based on our procedures, we considered that
judgement required in estimating the recovery’| the adequacy of disclosures in respect of loan
of loan and such estimates and judgements | given to related parties is not appropriate in
being inherently subjective, this matter has | the notes to the financial statements

been identified as a key audit matter for the
current year audit.

Information other than the financial statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

6. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
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material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have

nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the standalone financial
statements

7. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs (financial position), profit or loss (financial performance including
other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Ind AS specified under
Section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements

that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error o

8. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

9. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the audit of the Financial Statements

10. Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
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material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. '

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies
Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has

adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

15.

16.

d)

e)

As required by Section 197(16) of the Act, we report that the Company has paid remuneration to
its directors during the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid down under
Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Repart) Order, 2016 (the ‘Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A, a
statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

. Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report

that:

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and the Statement of Cash Flow and Statement
of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

in our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014;

on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March 2019
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March
2018 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;
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f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure B”: and

g} with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
Ind AS financial statements as referred to in Note No.38.5, 38.6, 38.7 & 38.8 to the Ind AS
financial statements.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

ii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. the disclosure requirements relating to holdings as well as dealings in specified bank
notes were applicable for the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016,
which are not relevant to these financial statements. Hence, reporting under this clause
is not applicable.

For ROHIT BAID & CO.
Chartered Accountants 4
(Firm Registration No. 031122N)

i

CA ROHIT BAID
Proprietor
Membership No. 535947

Place: Faridabad
Date: 30.05.2019
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ANNEXURE ATO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT OF EVEN DATE TO THE MEMEBERS OF KCL L_I"IH'IiTED
(Referred to in paragraph 16 under the heading of “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements”
of our Independent Auditors’ report to the members of KCL LIMITED the Ind AS financial statements for

the year ended 31 March 2019, we report that:

i. (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b)As explained to us, the management has physically verified its fixed assets at reasonable
intervals during the year and no material discrepancy was noticed on such verification.

(¢} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are holding
the name of the Company.

ii. We have been explained by the management that the inventory have been physically verified at
reasonable intervals during the year. As far as we could ascertain and according to information
and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed between the physical stock
and the book records.

iii. The Company has granted unsecured loans, to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships or

other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act,
2013.

(a) On the basis of information & explanations given to us and based on our verification, we
are of the opinion that the terms and conditions of granting of loans are prejudicial to the
company’s interest on account of granting such loans as interest free to the parties
covered under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013, having outstanding balance of Rs.
973.58 Lakhs gs at 31.03.2013,

(b) There is no pre-determined schedule for repayment of principal amount of such loans;
however, as explained to us by the management of company, such loans are repayable on
demand.

(c) Since there is no pre-determined schedule for repayment of granting such interest free
loans and therefore, we are unable to make any specific comment on the amount
overdue, if any.
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During the year under review the company has outstanding leans / advances to the per_;-;"-::-ns in
whom the director is interested and at the close of year 31.03.2019 an amount of Rs.973.58
Lakhs was outstanding against such loans / advances and therefore we are of the opinion that
provisions of Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013, has not been complied with by the
company and so far as the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, has been
concerned, it is not applicable on the company.

The Company has not accepted any deposit from the public, therefore provisions of Section 73
to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company.

The Central Government has prescribed the maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of
the Act, for the activity conducted by the Company and we are of the opinion that prima facie
the prescribed accounts and records have been maintained. However we have not made
detailed examination of such accounts and records.

vii. {a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our

examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in the books of
account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees’ state
Insurance, income tax, sales tax, goods & service tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of
customs, value added tax, cess and other material statutnr‘y. dues with the appropriate
authorities to the extent applicable and further, there are no undisputed statutory dues
payable for a period of more than six months from the date they become payable as at 31st
March 2019 except income tax demand of Rs.3,24,051/- related to A.Y. 2009-10 to A.Y. 2013-
14.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no material dues of
income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise and value added tax which
have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any dispute except

as under:
Neame of Statute Nature  of | Amount Period to which the | Forum where disputes fs
dues amount relates pending
Excise & Taxation, | SolesTax | Rs.13,14,445/- | F.¥. 2010-11 Additional  Excise  ond
Himachal Pradesh Taxation, Commissioner:
Cum =-Appellate Autharity,
Himachal Pradesh
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In our opinion, on the basis of audit procedures and according to the information and
explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loan or borrowing
to any banks. The Company has not obtained any loans from debenture holders, financial
institution and government.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not raised
moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt instruments)
during the year. The term loans have been applied for the purpose for which they were
raised.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company carried out
in accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, we have neither come
across any instance of fraud on or by the Company, noticed or reported during the year, nor
have we been informed of such case by the Management

According to the information and explanation given to us and based on our examination of
the records of the company, the company has paid or provided for the managerial
remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of
Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and exptanatiﬂn.ﬁ given to us, the Company
is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, this clause is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of
the record of the company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with
section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and details of such transactions
have been disclosed in the Financial Statements as required by the applicable accounting
standards.

The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review and therefore, the
requirement of Section 42 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not entered
into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him and therefore,
the provisions of Section 192 of Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable to the company.
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Xvi. The company is not a Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC) and therefore registration
requirement under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, is not applicable to

the company.

For ROHIT BAID & CO.
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 031122N)

W]
-
CA ROHIT BAID

Proprietor
Membership No. 535947

Place: Faridabad
Date: 30.05.2019
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ANNEXURE —~B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE IND AS FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF KCL LIMITED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) as referred to in paragraph 17(f) of ‘Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements’ section 1

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of KCL LIMITED ("the Company”)
as of March 31, 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements of the Company
for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based oh our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit
of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance 168 Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all
material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
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financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

Ll

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management
and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acguisition,
use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal
financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at March 31, 2019, based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India”. .

For ROHIT BAID & CO,
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Registration No. 031122N)

L

CA ROHIT BAID
Proprietor
Membership No. 535947

Place: Faridabad
Date: 30.05.2019



KCL LIMITED
CIN-L74899DL1983PLCO6B008

Balance Sheet as at 31ST MARCH 2019

Amount in Rs

Particulars Note As-at As at
Mo. 31-Mar-2019 31-Mar-2018
ASSETS
Mon-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 3 1.030,266,470 B51,886624
Capital work-in-progress 3 145,860,690 184,079,759
Intangible assets 3 477,551 1,140,724
Financial Assets
i Investmants 4 5,611,480 5,578,355
it Other financial assets 5 10,083,710 &,683,043
Deferred Tax Assets (net) 6 - i
Other non-current assets i 711,271 19,941 448
Total Non-Current Assets 1,193,011,172 1,114,309,953
Current Assets
Inventories 2 239,458,561 217,933,340
Financial Assets
i Trade recelvables 9 432,202,358 338,319,467
i Cashand cash eguivalents 10 5,673,453 2,251,867
iii Bank balances other than (i) above 11 7475594 375,514
v Loans 12 104,137,102 102,617,849
Current Tax Assets (Met) 13 1,744 287 653,462
Other current assets 14 143,909,202 85,247,815
Total Current Assets 893,872,597 747,399,314
Total Assets 2,086,883,769 1,863,709,267
EQIUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
Equity Share Capital 15 30,000,850 20,000,850
Other Equity 16 ., -BA0.T26.399 822 686,501
Total Equity 890,727,249 , B52,687,351
LIABILITIES
Mon-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Barrowings 17 423.565,408 364,702,099
Provisions 18 2,373,454 1,892.424
Deferred Tax Liabilities {Net) 19 21,657,200 16,073,300
Other Non-Current Liabilities 20 12,845,285 13,271,110
Total Non-Current Liabilities 459,441,347 400,938,933
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities
i Borrowings 21 107,324,755 107,540,807
il Trade Payables 22 478,061,430 358,439,033
fii Other financial liabilities 23 142,531,633 135,796,659
Other Current Liakilities 24 8,378,458 3,619,488
Provislons 25 418,897 286,896
Current Tax Liabilities (Met) 26 - -
Total Current Liabilities 736,715,173 610,082,983
Total Liabilities 1,196,156,520 1,011,021,916
Total Equity and Liabilities 2,086,383,769 1,863,709,267
Significant Accounting Policies 2 - -

Motes to Accounts

Accompanying Motes are an integral part of the finandla
As per our report of even date attached

For ROHIT BAID & CO.

(CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS)

FRN No.03112ZN SHYAM S RAJEEY KREMEA
{Director)

DIN Mo 00103260

(CA ROHIT BAID) i
PROPRIETOR ‘_«_‘:.'Qﬁ-?
M.ND.535047 SANJEEV KHEMKA ASHISH KHEMEKA
Place : Faridabad { Director) {Director)
Date: 30-05-2019 DIN No 00103295 DIN No 00103321



KCL LIMITED
CIN-L74899DL1983PLCO68008

Statement of Profit & Loss for the period ended 315T MARCH, 2019

Amount in Rs
i Note Year Ended Year Ended
Particalars No. 31-Mar-2019 31-Mar-2018
INCOME
Fevenue from Operations i) 2,969,138, 763 2,552,740,135
Less : GST Recovered 353,768,285 218,090,781
2,615,370,478 2,334 649,354
Other Income 28 3,266,072 4,310,540
Total Revenue " 2,618,636,550 2,338,558,894
EXPENSES
{a) Costof Materials Consumed 29 1,720,049,142 1,516,742.143
{b} Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods & Werk-In- 30 (6,686,221} (47,680,031)
(¢} Excise Duty 385,008 34,448,935
(d) Employes Benefits Expense 31 249,557,959 219,657,653
(&) Finance Costs 32 50,757,971 43,578,700
If} Depreciation and Amartization Expenses 33 126,050,828 137,680,185
(g} Other Expenses 34 435,647,774 381434826
Total Expenses 2,575,762,361 2,285,871,451
Profit before tax 42,874,189 53,088,443
Tax expense:
Current Tax 9,110,000 10,670,000
Mat Credit Enfitlerent (9,110,000 ;
Income Tax related to earlier years 1,995 63,738
Deferred Tax Adjustment 5,583,900 6,428,199
Total Tax Expenses 5,585,895 17,161,937
Profit for the year 37,288,294 35,926,506
Other Comprehensive Income/(Expensa)
(A} Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Remeasurement of investment at fair value 33,125 {133,030)
{ii) Remeasurement of net defined benefit plans 718,479 =
Incomie tax relating o ltemes that will not be reclassified to profitor log - -
{B} iterns that will be reclassified to profit or loss =
Income tax relating to itemes that will be reclassified to profit or loss >
Total Comprehensive Income for the year 38,039,858 35,793,476
Earnings per Equity Share of face value of Rs.10/- each
Basic 12.68 1193
Diluted 12.68 11.53
Significant Accounting Palicies 2
Notes to Accounts 1-46
Accompanying Notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached
For ROHIT BAID & CO.
{CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS)
FRN No.031122N
SHYAM SUNDER KHEMKA RAJEEV KHEMKA

DIN No 00103387

2 \W
o /SANJEEV KHEMIA

(CA ROHIT BAID
PROPRIETOR | Directar)
MLNO.535047 DIN Ne 00103295

Place : Faridabad
Date: 30-05-2019

{Chairman Cum Managing Director)

ASHISH KHEMEA

{Director)

DIN No 00103321




KCL LIMITED

CIN-L74899DL1983PLC068008

Cash Flow Statement for the year 2018-19

Amount In Rs.

Particulars

For the year ended
31 st March, 2019

For the year ended
31 st March, 2018

Cash Flow from Operating Activities
het Profit befare Tax
Add
loss on sales of fixed assets
Bepreciation and Amortisation
Provisian for Gratuity' & Leave Encashment
Sundry Balances Written off
Provision for CSR Expenses
Finance Costs

less
Profit on Sale of Assets
Sundry Balances Written off
Frovision written off no longer required
Interest income

Operating Profit before Working Capital changes

Changes in Woarking Capital:

Adjustenents for (incredse) / decrease in Operating Assets:
Inventaries
Trade Receivables
Loans, other financial assets and other assets
Other Non Current Assets
Adjustments for increose / (decrease) in Cperating Linbilites:

Trade Payables
Other financial liabilities, other liabilities and provisians
Other Current Liabilities

Cash generated from Operations

Interest Paid

Incorne Tax Paid (Met of Refunds)

Met Cash Flow from Operating Activities [A)

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Purchases of Property, Plant and Equipment & Intangible Assets
[including Capital Advances]

Increse in [nvestment

Incresefdecrese in Long Term Capital Advances

Proceeds from Sale of Fixed Assels

Interest Received

creditor for capax

Met Cash Flow from f (used in) Investing Activities (B)

42,874,189

136,050,328
[379,558)
102,234

S0757,971

(167,975)
(2.044,617)

(428,032)

216,766,040

{21,525,221)
{93, 986,165)
{16,760,239)

£

121,667,014
(1,094,557}

53,088 443

137,689,185
1,263,245
259,069

43,578,700

(402,428
(730,267)
{2.725.977)
{308,625

205,066,872

{10,202,820)

231,711,341

{123,0086,908}
(3,102,765)
{4,797,551)

155,060,005
(11,891,562)

194,864,052

243,972,559

{21,839,456)

(208,345,653

1,769,548
428,032

212,133,103

(206,148,073}

(210,458,026}

526,193
308,629

(202,623,204)




{CA ROMIT BAID)
PROPRIETOR

M. ND.535947
Place : Faridabad
Date: 30-05—2013

* . miml%m

{ Diréctor)
DI Mo 00103295

2 Particulars For the year ended For thé year ended
21 &t March, 2019 315t March, 2018

€. Cash flow from Financing Activities
Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings &E,451,810 13,805,973
Met increase / [decrease} in Working Capital Borrowings (616,152) (9,910,300)
Interest Paid (5,757,971) (43,578,700)
Net Cash Flow from / (used in) Financing Activities {C) 15,077,687 {29,683,027)
Net Increase [ (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) 3,793,666 (17,173.128)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,627,381 19,800,509
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year % 6,421,047 2627381
Cash and Cash Equivalent consists of cash in hand and balances with|
banks. Cash-and cash equivalents included in the cash flow statement
comprise of following balance sheet ampunt as per note no.10 & 11
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year
* Comprises:
(a) Cash on hand 916,333 447,725
{b) Balances with Banks
(i} Irt Current Accounts 4,707,236 1,857,285
(i) In Fixed Deposits 60,118 55,737
(i} In Margin Maney Accounts 736,760 266,634

6a21,047| /) 2,627,381
As per our report of even date attached For an behalf of the Board
For ROHIT BAID & CO.
{CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS)
FRM Mo.031122N SHYAM SUND RAJEEV MEA

(Chalrman Cum Mana;lns I.‘.Iirectﬂr] (Director)
éﬁiﬁ /‘Z\“" DIN Mo 00103387 fL DIN Mo 00103260

=

HISH KHEMEA
{Director)

{Campany Secreatry)

DIN No 00103321




KCL LIMITED
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2019

A.

Equity Share Capital

As at 1st April, 2017

Changes in equity share capital during the year
As at 31st March, 2018

Changes in equity share capital during the year
As at 31st March, 2019

=

Other Equity

No. of Shares Amount in Rs

3,000,085 30,000,850
3,000,085 30,000,850
3,000,085 30,000,850

/

Amount in Rs
Reserves and Surplus
Retained Earnings
i 2 Securit
Particulars Capital = ¥ General & Other Total
Premium
Reserve Reserve Comprehensive
Account
Income
As at 1st April, 2017 10,713,772 24,901,400 | 650,324,176 100,953,677 786,853,025
Profits for the year - - - 35,926,506 35,926,506
Amount transferred to General Reserve 20,000,000 {20,000,000) -
o = - - % 133,030
Other comprehensive income for the year (233,030} { :'
Total comprehensive income far the year i - - - 35,793,476 35,793,476
As at 315t March, 2018 10,713,772 24,901,400 | 670,324,176 116,747,153 822,686,501
Profits for the year - - 37,288,254 17,288,294
Amount transferred to General Reserve ' 20,000,000 (20,000,000)
s - - - 751,604 751,604
Other comprehensive income for the year £
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 33,039,898 38,039,898
As at 31st March, 2019 10,713,772 24,901,400 | €90,324,176 134,787,051 860,726,399
As per our report of even date attached
For ROHIT BAID & CO.
(CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS) SHYAM SUNDER KHEMEKA RAJEEV KHEMIKA
FRN No.031122N (Chairman Cum Managing Director) [Director)
DIN No 00103387 DIN No 00103260
{CA ROHIT BAID) -
PROPRIETOR SANIJEEV {MM EEHISH KHEMESL
M.NO.535947 { Director) (Director) (Company Secreatry)
Place : Faridabad DIN No 00103295 DIN No 00103321

Date: 30-05-2019
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KCL LIMITED

Motes on Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2019

1

2.1

22

2.3

{a)
i
{ii)
{iii}
{iv)

COMPANY INFORMATION

KCL LIMITED {the ‘Company’) Is a domestic public limited company with Registerad office situated ar E-292, Sarita Vihar, New Delhi-
110044 and is listed on Metropolitian Stock Exchange of India Limited (MSEI). The company is one of the leading manufacturer of
Corrugated Boards & Boxes and Healthcare Food Products. It -has Manufacturing Facilities at Faridabad, Greater Moida (U.P.), Baddi
and Paonta Sshib (H.P.), Chayyar (Tamil Nadu) & Sricity {A:P.). The products are supplied to reputed buyers in the fleld of FMCG
products, Auto Sector & Food Industries. Maost of the marketing and commercial activities are handled directly by the company from
its Carporate office situated at Faridabad.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation

These finanicial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the
“Ind A5 as notifled by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the
Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly-issued accounting standard is initially adopted or a
revision to an existing accounting standard reguires a change in the accounting policy hitherto in use,

Historical Cost Convention

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis; except for the following:
1) certain financial assets and liabifities that are measured at falr value;

2} defined benefit plans - plan assets measured at fair value.

¢

Use of Estimates .

The estimates and judgments used in the preparation of the financial statements are continuolsly evaiuated by the Company and
are based on historical experience and various other assumptions and factors (including expectations of future events) that the
Company believes to be reasonable under the existing circumstances. Differences between actual results and estimates are
recognised in the period in which the results are known) materialised.

The said estimates are based on the facts and events, that existed as at the reporting date, or that occurred after that date but
provide additional evidence about conditions existing as at the reporting date,

Classification of Assets and Liabilities
Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 requires assets and liabilities to be classified as either Current or Non-current.

An asset shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria: :

it is expected to be realised in, or Is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle;
it 15 held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

it is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting date; or

it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after
the reporting date,




KCL LIMITED
Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2019

(b}
{c)
i
(i)
{iii)
(i)

i)
2.4

2.5

2.6

All assets other than current assets shall be classified as non-current.
A liability shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
it is expected to be settled inthe Company’s normal operating cycle;
it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or
the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer ssttlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
date.

Al liabilities other than current liabilities shall be classified as non-current.

Operating Cycle y

An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents. The
Company has ascertained the operating cycle as twelve months for the purpose of current or Non-current classification of assets
and liabilities.

Inventorias

Raw Material ,Work-in-Process, Finished goods are valued at lower of cost-and net realisable value, after providing for cost of
obsolescence and other anticipated lossess, whersever considered necessary. Cost is computed on the weighted average basis and
is et of recoverable taxes, where 83 Stores and Spares parts are valued at cost on basls of FIFO method. Finished Goods, Work In
Brocess includes cost of conversion and other cost incurred in bringing the inventories to thelr present location and condition.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Tangible Assets

Property, plant and equipiment is stated at acquisition cost net of accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if
any. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as 2 separate asset, as appropriate; only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. &1l other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period in which they are
incurred.

Gains or losses arising on retirement or disposal of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the Statement of Profit and
Loss.

PFraperty, plant and equipment which are not ready for intended use as on the date of Balance Sheet are disclosed a5 "Capital work-
in-progress”,

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis on the W.D.V method based on estimated useful life prescribed under Schedule |l to the
Companies Act, 2013,

Freehold land Is not depreciated.

The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation of property; plant and equipment is reviewed at each financial year end
and adjusted prospectively, it appropriate; For new projects, for direct expenses and direct overheads including interest on
Barrawed funds for the acquisition of Assets are capitalized till the assets are ready for intended use.

Upon first-time adoption of Ind AS, the Company has elected to measure il Its property, plant and equipment at the Previous GAAP
carrying amount as its deemed cost on the date of transition to Ind AS i.e,, 1st April 2016

Intangible Assets

separately purchased intangible assets are initially measured at cost. Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subseguently, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Finite-life intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of their expected useful lives. Estimated useful life by major class of finite-life intangible asset is as follows:

Computer software - 3 years !

The amortisation period and the amortisation methad for finite-life intangible assets is reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2019

2.7 Borrowing Cost
Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction of gualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cost of
Assets. Oualifying Asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use. All other borrowing
costs are treated as period costand charged to the statement of profit and loss in the year in which itwas incurred.

-

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets
The Company assesses at each reporfing date ds to whether thers is any indication that any property, plant and equipment and
intangitle assets or group of assets, called cash generating Units [CGU) may be impaired, If any such indication exists the
recoverable armount of an asset or CGU is estimated to determine the extent of impairment, if any. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset; the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the
asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised in thie Statement of Profit and Loss to the extent, asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and value in use. Value in use is based on the
actimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the tirme value of money and risk specific to the assets.

2.9 Revenue Recognition
The Company generally foliows tercantile System of Accounting and recognises significant items of income and expenditure on
acerual basls except claims those with significant uncertainties e g insurance claims which are accounted for on cash basis,

Revenue from the sale of goods s recogrized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods are transferred to
the customers and is stated inclusive of excise duty, sales tax & G5T. Revenue from the sale of goods is stated at net after adjusting
the returns, rebates B discounts. o

Iriterast income is recognized on at time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the rate applicable,

2.10 Foreign Exchange Transaction
Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of the transactions.

Monatary items denominated in foreign currencles at the year end are restated at year end rates. In case of items which are
covered by forward exchange contracts, the difference between the year end rate and rate on the date of the contract is recognized
as exchange difference and the premium paid on forward contracts is recognized over the life of the contract. Any profit or loss
arising on cancellation or renewal of forward exchange contracts are recognized as income or 35 expenses for the year,

Non-monetary items are carried at cost.

ny income or expense on account of exchange difference sither on settlement or on translation is recognized and is reflected
separately in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

2.11 Excise Duty :
Excise duty has been accounted on the basis of both payments made in respect of goods cleared anid also provision made for goods
lying in bonded warehouse

Aftar Implementation of Goods & Service Tax Act w.ef. 01.07.2017, the provisions of G5T are applicable and accordingly the books
of accounts have been prepared.

2.12 Government Grants
Government grants available to the company are recognised when there is a resonable assurance to compliance with the
conditions attached to such grants and where benefits in respect thereof have been eamed and it is resonably certain that the
ultimate collection will be made, Government subsidy in the nature promoters’ contribution is credited to capital reserve,
Government subsidy for specific asset is reduced from cost of the said asset.

o
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KCL LIMITED
MNotes on Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2019

2.13 Employees Benefits -
Shiort Term Employee Benefits:
All employes benefits payable wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short term employee benefits
and the undiscounted amount of such employee benefits are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which the
employee renders the related services. These benefits include salaries, wages, banus, performance incentives etc,

Defined Benefit Plan
Gratuity and long—term compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation carried out at the close of each period.
The actuartal valuation is done by an Independent Actuary as per projected unit credit method.

For defined benefit plans, the amount recognised as ‘Employee benefit expenses’ in the Statement of Profit.and Loss is the cost of
accruing employee benefits promised to employees over the year and the costs of individual events such as pastffuture service
benefit changes and settlements (such events are recognised immediately in the Statement of Profit and Loss). The amount of net
interest expense calculated by applying the liability discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset is charged to ‘Employee
benefits expense’ in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Any differences between the interest income on plan assets and the retern
actually achieved, and any changes in the Habilities over the year due to changes in actuarial assumptions or experience adjustments
within the plans, are recognised immediztely in 'Other comprehensive Income” and subsequently not reclassified to the Statement
of Profit and Loss:

Defined Contribution Plan

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as employee state insurance scheme, employee provident fund,
superannuation scheme, employes pension scheme etc. are charged as an expense based on the amount of contribution required
to be made as and when services are rendered by the employvees. Company’s provident fund centribution, in respect of certain
employees, is made to a government administered fund and charged as an expense to the Statement of Profit and Loss. The above
benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the {:umpan'\r has no further defined obligations beyond the monthiy
contributions.

2.14 Cash & Cash Equivalents ¥
Cash and Cash Equivalents comprises cash and cash on deposit with banks. The comipany considers all highly liquid investment with
a remaining maturity at the date of purchase of three months or less and that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash to
be cash equivalents.

2.15 Cash Flow Statement
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method In accordance with Ind AS 7, whereby a profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or aceruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows
from eperating, financing and investing activities of the Company are segregated.

2.16 Tax Expenses
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the
extent that'it relates to items recognised in the comprehiensive income or In equity. In which case, the tax s also recognised in other
comprehensive income or equity.

Current Tax:
Provision for Taxation is ascertained on the basis of assessable profit computed in accordance with the provisions of Income Tax
Act, 1961,

Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) Credit:

Minimium Alternate Tax credit is recognized, as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence that the
Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be
recognized as an asset in accordance with the recommendations contained in guidance riote issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, the sald asset is created by way of a credit to the Profit and Loss Account and shown as MAT Credit
Entitlement under Loans & Advances. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying
amount of MAT Credit Entitlerient to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company will pay normal
Income Tax during the specified period.
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KCL LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2019

Deferred Tax:
Deferred tax is recognised on temperary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financlal
statements and the comesponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is
settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period. The carrying amount of Deferred tax liabilities and assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,

2.17 Provision and Contingent Liabilities
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to setthe the obligation and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Frovisions are measured at the present valug of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The incréase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognised as interast expense.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there s a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be
confirmed only biy the ocourrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain foture events not wholly within the contral of the
Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable that an cutflow of rescurces will be
required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made,

2.18 Financial Instruments
a). Financial Assets
Financial assets dre recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. On initial
recognition, a fimancial asset is recognised at fair value, in case of Financial assets which are recognised at fair value through profit
and loss [FYTPL), its transaction cost are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. In other cases, the transaction cost are
attributed to the acquisition valus of the financial asset, Financial assets are subsequently classified and measured at
= amartised cost
« fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

Investments in unquoted equity shares of related parties
The Company has accounted for its investments in unquoted equity shares of related parties at cost,

Other investments in quoted equity share
Al quoted equity investments are measured at fair value, with value changes recognised In Statement of Profit and Loss, except for
thoze equity investments for which the Company has elected to present the value changes in ‘Other Comprehensive Incoma’.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company uses ‘Expected Cradit Loss’ (ECL) model, for evaluating impairment of financlal assets
other than these measured at fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL).

The Company measures the expected credit loss associated with its assets based on historical trend, industry practices and the
business environment in which the entity operates or any other appropriate basis. The impairment methodology applied depends
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk..

b). Financial Liabilities

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial
lizbilities are initially measured at the amortised cost unless at initial recognition, they are classified as fair value through profit and
loss.

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Financial liabilities
carried at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

A financial fia b@lis derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or expires.
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Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2019

2.19 Earnings per Share
Earning Per Share (EFS) is calculated by dividing the Net Profit or Loss for the period attributable to équity shareholders by the
Weighted Average Number of equity shares outstanding during the period.
For the purpose of calculating Diluted Eaming Per shara, the Net Profit or Loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders is
divided by the Weighted Average Number of shares cutstanding during the period after adjusting for the effects of all dilutive
potential equity shares.

2.20 Miscellaneous Expenditure
Share issue expenses are adjusted from Securities Fremium Account at the time of issue of respective Shares.

2.21 Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments such as forward contracts, option contracts and cross currency swaps, to hedge its foreign currency
risks are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is entered into and arg subsequently re-measured at their
fair value with changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the period when they arise.
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KCL LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2019

4 Investments

Particulars - i AR
31-Mar-2019 31-Mar-2018

Investments measured at Cost
Unguoted Equity Shares
il 42000 Equity Shares of Ginni Packaging Private Limited of Rs.10/- 422,100 422,100
each fully paid up.
i) 430000 Equity shares of M/s KCL Milk Products india Private 4,900,000 4,900,000
Lirmited of Rs.10/~ each fully paid up.
Investments measured alr Value Th r rehensive
Income)
Quoted Equity Shares -
5300 Equity Shares of M/s Allahabad Bank of Rs.10/- each fully paid 289,380 256,255
up
Total 5,611,480 5,578,355

4.1 The company has outstanding investment in equity shares of intra group companies aggregating Rs.
53.22 Lacs as at March 31, 2019, however, net worth of such intra group company has been eroded as per

latest audited financial statement available of such company. The Company has not evaluated whether

any impairment provision is reguired for expected credit losses in accordance with Ind AS 109 - “Financial

Instruments! due to uncertainty of recovery on disposal of said assets.

5 Other Financial Assets

Particulars i o
31-Mar-2019 31-Mar-2018
Security Deposits with government authorities & others 10,083,710 8,683,043
Total 10,083,710 8,683,043

5.1 Time period of Security Deposit with government autharities and others is not defined [/ available,

therefore security deposit is not discounted in accordance with Ind AS 109 - “Financial Instruments”,

& Deferred Tax Assets (Net)

Particulars AEHE At
31-Mar-2019 31-Mar-2018
Deferred Tax Assets
Provision for Retirement Benefits - -
Fixed Assats =
Others
Total Deferred Tax Assets = :




KCL LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2019

7 Other non-current assets

As at Asat
Parti
i 31-Mar-2019 31-Mar-2018
Advarce for Capital Goods (A) . 19,230,177
Preoperative Expenses [ subject to allocation ) :
Brought Forward 711,271 687,849
Addition during the year 23,422
Less : Transferred during the year - -
Preoperative Expenses (B) 711,271 711,271
Total (A + B) 711,271 19,941,448
8 Inventories
Particulars i As i
31-Mar-2019 31-Mar-2018
Raw materials 141,858,439 132,817,340
Waork-in-Progress 44,354,725 42,376,212
Finished Goods 35,004,154 30,489,426
Scrap 303,080 116,000
Stores and Spares 17,938,168 12,140,362
Goods In Transit a - -
Total 239,458,561 217,933,340
* Inventories have been hypothecated with banks against working capital loans.
9 Trade Receivables
Particulars i A
31-Mar-2019 31-Mar-2018
= Unsecured, Considerad Good 428,068,901 338,319,467
- Doubtful 4,133,497 -
Total 432,202,398 338,319,467

9.1 Trade Receivables have been hypothecated with banks against working capital loans,

8.2 The Company has filed demand notice u/s 8 of The Insovency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 ,against four

debtors involving amount of Rs.41.33 Lacs for recovery and the miatter is pending with NCLT.

| =4




KCL LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2019

10 Cashand cash equivalents
; As at As at
o b 31-Mar-2019 | 31-Mar-2018
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash in hand {as certified by the managment) 916,333 A447.725
Balances with Banks -
- In Current Accounts 4,697,002 1,748,405
- Fixed Deposits (with Banks) 60,118 85,737
Total 5,673,453 2,251,867
11 Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents
Asat As at
FAtisular 31.Mar-2019 | 31-Mar-2018
Other Bank Balances
- InMargin Money Accounts : 736,760 266,634
= In Employees Group Gratuity Saving Bank Account 10,834 108,880
Total 747,594 375,514
12 Loans
Particulars HE A
31-Mar-2019 31-Mar-2018
Loans to Related Parties
Unsecured & considered good, unless otherwise stated, as certified
by the managemeant
- Inter Corporate Loans (Refer Note No. 40) 97,358,055 96,190,196
- Dthers 1,375,028 1,374,468
Loans and Advances to Employees 5,404,019 5,053,185
Total 104,137,102 102,617,849

12.1 Time period of Loans to related parties is not defined [ available, therefore the same has not been

discounted in accordance withind AS 109 - “Financial Instruments®,

12.2 Time period [/ recovery period of Loans and Advances to Employees is not defined [
available in most of the cases, therefore the same has not been discounted in accordance
withlnd AS 109 - “Financial Instruments”,




KCL LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2019
13 Current Tax Assets (Net)

Particulars o A
31-Mar-2019 31-Mar-2018
Current Tax assets (net) 1,744,287 653,462
Total 1,744,287 653,462
14 Other current assets
As at Asat
Particulars
31-Mar-2019 31-Mar-2018
Considered good, unless otherwise stated (
Prepaid Expenses 3,975,400 4,012,391
MAT Credit Entitlerment 40,710,000 31,600,000
Balance with Government Authorities
(i) Balance with Cantral Excise & GST Dept 47,492 840 34,280,156
(i) VAT Credit Receivable 1,460,872 5,150,365
Others
(i) Advance to Suppliers & Others | 11,219,013 10,014,411
(i} Advance to Gratuity Fund 1,711,068 . -
(iii} Other Receivables 3,340,009 190,492
Total 109,909,202 85,247,815




KCL LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2019

The previous year figures have been regrouped [ reclassified, wherever necessary ta conform to the

current year presentation

=

15 SHARE CAPITAL As at As at

31-Mar-2019 31-Mar-2018
Equity Share Capital :
Authorise apital;
50,00,000  Equity Sharesof Rs.10/- each S0000000.00 50000000.00
-5,000,000 )

5000000000 50000000.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital:
30,00,085  Eguity Shares of Rs.10/- each 30000850.00 30000850.00
(30,00,085) fully paid up
TOTAL 30000850.00 3000085000
15.1 The details of Shareholders holding more than 5% shares :

Asat Asat
31-Mar-2019 31-Mar-2018
Mame of the Shareholder No. of Shares % held Mo. of Shares % held
sh. Shyam Sunder Khemka 526,260 17.54 . 526,260 17.54
Smt. Chandra Kala Khemka 390,200 13.01 390,700 1301
Sh. Rajesv Khemka 246,325 8.21 246,325 8.21
Sh. Sanjeev Khembka - 264,875 8.83 264,875 B.23
Sh. Ashish Khemka 331,350 11.04 331,350 11.04
M/s Khemka Leasing Private Limited 484,500 16.15 ' 484,500  16.15
M/s Khemka Packaging Private Limited 200,000 6.67 200,000 6.67
15.2 The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding is set out below :
As at Asat
31-Mar-2019 31-Mar-2018

Particulars MNo. of Shares Ma. of Sharas
Equity Shares at the beginning of the year 3000085 3000085
Add : Shares issued during the year 1] a
Less ; Shares cancelled on buy back 0 ¥}
Equity Shares at the end of the year 3000085 3000085

15.3 Terms/ rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/-. Each holder of equity

shares is entitled to one vote per share,

15.4 The Company has not alloted any fully paid up shares pursuant to contract{s) without payment being made in cash rior has
alloted any fully paid up shares by way of bonus shares nor has bought back any class of shares during the period of five years

immediately preceeding the balance sheet date.
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Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2019
Other Equity
Particulars As ot A
: 31-Mar-2019 | 31-Mar-2018
(a) Capital Reserve
Opening Balance 10,713,772 10,713,772
Add: Additions during the year s -
Less: Utilised [/ transferred during the year - -
Closing Balance 10,713,772 10,713,772
(b} Securities Premium Account
Opening Balance 24,901,400 24,901,400
Add: Additions during the year . 5
Less: Utilised / transferred during the year - -
Closing Balance 24,901,400 24,501,400
(c) General Reserve
Opening Balance 670,324,176 | 650,324,176
Add: Transferred from Surplus in Profit and Loss Statement 20,000,000 20,000,000
Less: Utilisation = =
Closing Balance 690,324,176 | 670,324,176
{d) Surplus in Profit and Loss Statement
Opening Balance 116,543,898 | 100,617,392
Add: Profit for the year 37,288,294 35,926,506
Less Amount transferred to General Reserve 20,000,000 20,000,000
Closing Balance 133,832,192 | 116,543,898
(e} Other comprehensive income
Opening Balance 203,255 336,285
Add: Remeasurement of investment at fair value 751,604 -133,030
Closing Balance 954,859 203,255

Total

! BED,?ZE,SBB' 822,636,501

Capital Reserve:

Capital reserve was created from government subsidy received in earlier years.

Securities Premium Reserve;

The amount received in excess of face value of the equity shares is recognised in Securities Premium Reserve. This

reserve can be utilised in accordance with the provision of the companies act.

General Reserve;

The general is used time to time to transfer profit from retained earnings for appropriation purposes, As the general
reserve is created by transfer from one component of equity to ancther equity, hence item included in general reserve

will not be reclassified subsequently to profit and loss.
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Borrowings
7 As at Asat
FArRbAS 31-Mar-2019 | 31-Mar-2018
Term Loans
From Banks =
--- Terim Loan -HSBC Bank 73,505,572 128,711,786
--Term Loan -HDFC (Previeus Year -Allahbad Bank) 215,964,830 | 133,832.488
289,470,402 262,594,274
Vehicle Loans 17,877,913 13,776,083
Unsecured Loans
From Directors 115,217,093 88,331,742
Total 427 565,408 364,702,099

Termy Loans from Hengkong and Shanghal Banking Corporation Ltd & HDFC Bank (previous year-Allahbad Bank) are
secured by way of pari passu charge over entire Fixed Assets of the Company including Plant & Machinery (both present
and future) except those exclusively funded through other Financial Institutions and pari-passu chagre on the Stocks and
Receivables of the company (both present & future) and collaterally secured by way of first pari-passu chagre on
Factories located at Plot No.135; Sector-24, Faridabad, Plot an.ZB'?, Sector-24, Faridabad, Plot Ne.11B, Udyog Vihar,
Greater Nolda, Factory located at Village Bir Pillasi, Factory Land & Building located at Mopuraplli Village, Varadaiapalem
Mandal Chittoor, Andhra Pradesh, In Ehe name of Company and personal guarantee of Sh Shyam Sunder Khemka, Sh.
Rajeev Khemka, 5h. Sanjeev Khemka, Sh. Ashish Khemka and Smt Chanderkala Khemka, all Directors of the company . All
securities are under pari passu charge with HDFC Bank and Hongkong and Shanghai Banking corporation Itd.

Hypothecation of vehicles financed by the banks

Unsecured Loans from Directors are Long Term Borrowings and are interest bearing & repayable with prior permission

of bankers.
Provisions
Particulars A g

31-Mar-2019 | 31-Mar-2018

Provision for Employee Benefits

-Gratuity (funded) - 83,203

-Leave Encashment [un-funded) 2,373,454 1,809,221

Total 2,373,454 1,892,424
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v
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
Particular i rem
i 31-Mar-2019 | 31-Mar-2018
Deferred Tax Liabilities X
Fixed Assets 22,145,500 17,914,000
Total Deferred Tax Liabilities (A) 22,145,500 17,914,000
Deferred Tax Assets
Provision for Retirement Benefits 964,400 720,500
Fixed Assets -
Others -476,100 1,120,200
Total Deferred Tax Assets (B) 488,300 1,840,700
Deferred Tax Assets (Net) (A-B) 21,657,200 16,073,300
Other Non-Current Liabilities
As at As at
Particulars
o 31-Mar-2019 | 31-Mar-2018
Creditors for Capital Goods 12,845,285 18,271,110
Total 12,845,285 | 18,271,110
Short-Term Borrowings
As at As at
Fartiouis 31-Mar-2019 | 31-Mar-20138
Secured
Working Capital Loan from Bank * 107,324,755 | 107,940,507
Taotal 107,324,755 107,940,907

Working Capital Limit from Hongkeng and Shanghai Banking Corporation Ltd & HDFC Bank (previous year-Allahbad
Bank) are secured by way of pari passu charge over entire Fixed Assets of the Company including Plant & Machinery
(both present and future] except those exclusively funded through other Financial Institutions and pari-passu chagre on
the Stocks and Receivables of the company (both present & future) and collaterally secured by way of first pari-passu
chiagre on Factories located at Plot No.135, Sector-24, Faridabad, Plot No.297, Sector-24, Faridabad, Plot No.11B, Udyog
Vihar, Greater Moida, Factory located at Village Bir Pillasi, Factory Land & Building located at Mopuraplli Village,
Varadaiapalem Mandal Chittoor, Andhra Pradesh, in the name of Company and personal guarantee of Sh Shyam Sunder
Khemka, Sh. Rajeev Khemka, Sh. Sanjeev Khemka, Sh. Ashish Khemka and Smt Chanderkala Khemka, all Directors of the
company . All securities are under pari passu charge with HOFC Bank and Hongkong and Shanghal Banking corporation

ltd.

Q‘:ﬁ BAIG
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Trade Payables
E As at As at

e 31-Mar-2019 | 31-Mar-2018
Micro and Small Enterprises * y 421,004 -
Others 477,640,426 | 358439033
Total 478,061,430 | 358,439,033
5.1 Detail of dues to Micro and Small enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
Development Act, 2006 (MSMED Act), based on the information given by the mianagement, are as under:
Particulars Asat As at

31.03.201%9 31.03.2018

1 Principal amount due 421004.00
2 Interest due on above Nil
3 amount of Interest paid in terms of Sec 16 of the MSMED Act il refer note no.
4 Amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay il 5.2
5 Amount of Interest accrued and remaining unpaid as at year end il
& Amount of further interest remaining due and payable in Nil

the succeeding years

5 2 During the financial year 2017-18 ,the Company has no information from its suppliers being registered under Micro,
Small & Medium Enterprises as defined under MSME Act 2006. Hence requirement regarding payment within specified
date, interest on paymernt beyond specified date, if any, and other disclosures reguirement in Annual Accounts could

23

not be dertermined/ provided.

Other financial liabilities

Particulars ke puat
31-Mar-2019 | 31-Mar-2018
Current Maturities of Long Term Debts
From Banks:
--= Term Loan -HSBC bank 55,212,640 58,577 464
---Term Loan HDFC Bank (Previous Year -Allahbad Bank) 54,100,819 37,560,000
Total 109,313,459 96,137,464
Vehicle Loans 8,588,768 13,176,262
Subtotal| 117,902,227 | 109,313,726
Other Payables
Liabilities for Expenses & Others 24,629 406 30,482,933
24,629,406 30,482,933
Total 142,531,633 | 139,796,659
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Other Current Liabilities

-

As at As at
Particulars X
31-Mar-2019 | 31-Mar-2018
Advances from Customers 50,000 2,244,183
Statutery Dues 8,328 458 1,375,305
Total B,378,458 3,619,488
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Provisions
As at As at
PRrHENIE 31-Mar-2019 | 31-Mar-2018
Provision for Corporate Social Responsibility -
Provision for Employee Benefits
-Leave Encashment (un-funded) (Refer note no. 42) 418,897 286,896
Total 418,897 286,896
Current Tax Liabilities {Net)
As at Asat
Particulars
31-Mar-2019 | 31-Mar-2018

Provision for Income Tax (net of advance tax)

Total
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KCL LIMITED f
/
Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ended 31ST MARCH, 2019 /
. Armount in Rs
Revenue from Operations
Year ended Year.ended
31-Mar-2019 31-Mar-2018
Sale of Products 3,094,866,749 2,708,982,506
Less -internal Censumption 125,727,986 133,504,775
Less - Sales Tax Recovered on Sales 0 22,737,596
Total 2,969,138,763 2,552,740,135
Sale of Products comprises of Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-2019 31-Mar-2018
Corrugated Boards & Boxes 2,280,130,174 1,866,563,731
Duplex Board Cartons 569,485,247 558,169,887
Food Products 104,805,817 154,749,110
Milk /Dairy Products 61,065,600 59,998,058
scrap 79,379,911 69,501,720
Total - Sale of Products 3,094,866,749 2,708,982,506
Other Income
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-2019 31-Mar-2013
Inceme Tax Refund 800 -
Interest Received 428,032 308,629
Sundry Balances Written back 2,044,617 730,267
Rent Received 540,000 i]
Insurance Claim Received 84,648 143,239
Provision no longer reguired written back 0 2725977
Profit oh Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment 167,975 402,428
Total 3,266,072 4,310,540
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+ KOL LIMITED ;
Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ended 315T MARCH, 2013
Amount in Rs.
Cost of Raw Materials Consumed
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-2019 31-Mar-2018
Opening Stock 132,817,340 58,051,871
Add: Purchases 1,832,252,419 1,707,230,348
' 1,965,069,759 1,765,282,219
less Internal Consumption 103,162,182 115,722,696
1,861,907,576 1,649,559,523
Less: Closing Stock 141,858,434 132,817,340
Cost of Material Consumed 1,720,049,142 1,516,742,183
Material Consumed comprises:
1. Kraft Paper 1,325,018,321 1,068,361,840
2. Duplex Board 260,323,568 230,925,751
3. Corrugated Board & Sheet 101,803,218 137,251,654
4, Lamination Film 10,291,189 9,518,294
5. Flour Wheat & Maize 16,471,097 16,428 787
&. Oils & Fats 1,795,274 2,629,313
7. Chemicals, Flavours, Sugar & Salts 3,005,451 11,372,808
8. Skimmed Milk Powder ; 3322 4,001
9. Packaging Materials{used in packing of food products) 9,171,951 20,595,286
10. Dextros Monohydrate 8,807,205 37,449,749
11.Raw Milk 20,250,420 22,034,176
12.Cthers 64,837,987 75,893,220
13. Soyabeen 1,432,322
1,823,211,325 1,632,464 879
Less Internal Consumption 103,162,183 115,722,696

Total

1,720,049,142

1,516,742,183
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KCL LIMITED

Amount in Rs
Changes in Inventories
Year ended Year ended
- 31-Mar-2019 11-Mar-2018
ventori end r
Finished Goods 35,004,154 30,489,426
Wark-In-Progress 44,354,725 42,376,212
Serap 303,080 110,000
79,661,959 72975638
Inventories beginni the ye
Finished Goods 30,489,426 20,629,552
Work-ln-Progress 42,376,212 3,790,869
Scrap 110,000 875,186
72,975,638 25,295,607
Met {increase) [ Decrease -6,686,321 47,680,031
Employee Benefits Expenses
Year ended| Year ended
31-Mar-2019 1-Mar-2018
Salaries, Wages & Bonus 229,962,079 200,221,649
Contributions to Provident Fund (Refer note no.42) 5,161,781 4,933,452
Contributions to Employes State Insurance Fund 2,951,860 2,799,814
Gratuity 1,370,915 883603
Staff Welfare Expenses ! 10,111,324 10,819,135
Taotal 248,557,959 219,657,653
Finance Costs
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-201% 31-Mar-2018
Interest Expense on:
(i} Term Loans from Banks 24,674,135 29,153,307
(i) Others Borrowing Costs 26,083,836 14,425,393
Total 50,757,971 43,578,700
Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses
Year ended| Year ended
31-Mar-2019 31-Mar-2018
Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment 125,387,655 135,984,187
Amortisation an Intangible Assets 663,173 1,704,933
Total 126,050,828 137,689,185

a1




KCL LIMITED

y,
/
Amount in Rs
Other Expanses
Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-2019 31-Mar-2018
Manufacturing Expenses
Consumption of Stores and Spare Parts 63,836,239 57,708,433
Consumption of Block Printing & Design 34,877,187 23,152,146
Power and Fuel 88,606,221 72,586,756
Eactory Rent including Lease Rentals 4,517,477 4,291,038
House Keeping Expenses 1,548,416 1,876,346
Carriage Inward Expenses 1,442,647 1,907,733
Job Work Expenses 77,452 1,096,899
Repairs and Maintenance - Machinery 25,699,239 24,786,946
Repairs and Maintenance - Others 12,366,301 16,900,362
Sub Total 232,971,179 204,306,659
Administration Expenses
Rent 4,419,370 4,218,486
Insurance 6,705,022 6,388,743
Rates and Taxes 1,953,220 1,741,100
Travelling Expenses 25,395,979 18,542,657
Conveyance Expenses 4,571,318 2,984,652
Printing & Staticnery 1,790,316 1,706,082
Postage, Telegram & Telephone 2,613,475 2,714,643
Legal and Frofessional 4,445,466 2,112,551
Retainership Charges 11,186,847 11,251,886
Security Service Charges 6,269,336 6,170,170
Membership & Subscription 664,652 652,126
Car Maintenance & Vehical Upkeep 5,426,475 4,084,126
Electricity & Water Charges 1,448,912 1,668,555
General Expenses 2,553,928 2,284,411
Employees Recruitment & Training Expenses 9,392,813 9,844,741
Charity & Donation 847,200 233,100
IS0 Certification Charges 442,209 772,377
Sundry Balances Written off 103,234 259,069
Software charges 401,828 134,512
Bad Debts Written off 1,919,561 211,121
Pricr Period Expenses 279,180 291,443
Listing Fees 55,000 40,250
Filing Fees 14,000 20,396
Expenses towards CSR Activities 2,448,700 2,822,296
Loss on theft 0 192,329
Loss on Sale of Property, Plant and Eguipment o -
Interest on late fee 480,450 221,457
3,859,375 1,736,548
Sub Total 99,689,126 83,299,737




KCL LIMITED

."ll
Selling Expenses

Consumption of Packing Materials 9,837,890 11,602,044
Fraight Outward (Net) 80,506,021 64,832,137
Sales Promotion Expenses 7,200,705 10,576,185
Discount Allowed 2,291,109 4,052,508
Advertisement & Publicity - 245,927 428,062
Sales Conference 0 0
Damages & Claims 1,914,434 1,218,351
Commission on Consignment Sales 25,387 0
Product & Sample Distribution Exp 485,996 608,743
Sub Total 102,507,469 93,318,430

Payments to the Auditors
&g Auditors - Statutory Audit 300,000 330,000
For Tax Audit 60,000 60,000
For Internal Audit 120,000 120,000
Sub Total 480,000 510,000
Total 435,647,774 381,434,826

34.1- Expenditure incurred on Corporate Social Responsibilty,

Detail of expenditure on corporate Social Responsibility Activities as per section 135 of the companies Act 2013

read with Schedule 11l are as below:-

c Year ended Year ended
31-Mar-2019 31-Mar-2018

A.Gross amount required to be spent by the company 1923852 2168062
during the year
i} Construction/acquisition of assets
iijon purpose other than (ijabove
B. Amount spent during the year
i) Amount spent 2448700 34372596
i) Amount Yet to be spent = [
Total 2448700 3437296

The company does not carry any provisions for Corporate Social Responsibilty expenses for current year as well as

for previous year.
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Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st Marc h, 2019
Amount in Rs.
Mote 35 Earning Per Share
Year ended Year ended
= 31-Mar-2019 31-Mar-2018
Earnings Per Share
i) Net Profit after Tax as per Profit and Loss Statement
attributable to Equity Shareholders (in Rs.) 38,039,898 35,793,476
i) Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares used as 3,000,085 3,000,085
denominator for calculating EPS
iii) Basic and Diluted Earnings per Share (in Rs.) 12.68 11.93
iv) Face Value per Equity Share (in Rs.) 10 10
MNote 36
Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)
As at As at
31-Mar-2019 31-Mar-2018
Contingent Liabilities
Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debt
1) Surety Bond for availing duty under EPCG Scheme 6,994,432 6,994,432
2} Bank Guarantees = 596,000
3} Letter of Credits S s
4) Sales Tax matters under appeal 1,314,445 1,314,445
8,308,877 8,904,877
Commitments
- Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on Capital
Account and not provided for (Net of Advances) 3,501,715 116,248,477
- Export Obligation against Import under EPCG Licence 481,714,685 481,714,685
485,216,400 597,963,162




KCL LIMITED

Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2019

37.

(=

37.2

37.3

37.4

Note -37

Amount in Rs.

Details of Consumption of Imported and Indigenous Items |

Year Ended on 31.03.2019

Year Ended on 31.03.2018

Raw Materials
a) Imported
b} Indigenecus

Stores and spares
a) Imported
b} Indigeneous

Percentage Value Percentage Value
0.00 0 1.62 24587128
100.00 1720049142 98.38 1492155055
100.00 1720049142 100.00 1516742183
0 (1] 0 (4]
100 63836239 100 57708433
100 63836239 100 57708433

Value of Imports calculated on CIF basis

Year Ended on 31.03.2019

Year Ended on 31.03.2018

Raw Materials 75507591
Components- Spare Parts 4562162 4677055
Capital Goods 114720340 33554341
Earnings in Foreign Exchange Year Ended on 31.03.2019 Year Ended on 31.03.2018

Export of Goods calculated on FOB basis

Expenditure in Foreign Currency

Year Ended on 31.03.2019

Year Ended on 31.03.2018

Travelling Expenses & other matters

12465140

12202820




KCL LIMITED
Notes on Financial Statements for the Year ended 31st March, 2019

Note-38
381

38.2

38.3

38.4

38.5

386

38.7

B8

33.9

The following Land alloted / purchased are yet to be registered in the name of Company.
a) The company has entered inte Agreement for purchase of Land measuring 4.59 Acre at Village

Gumshani, Tehshil- Bajpur, Uttranchal, Dist- Udham Singh Nagar, Khata No 0057, Khasara No 315/3.4.59
acre area. Due to refusal for the registration of the the said property by the seller, the Company has filed

a suit agairist him and the matter is sub judiced with the courts,

b) The Company has received possession certificate on dated 20.10.2015 of Industrial Plot No. 254-255,
Industrial Estate Sector, Roz ka Meo, Faridabad, measuring area of 8100 sq. mtr and full payment thereof
has been debited to Capital Work In Progress but the conveyance deed is yet to be executed.

The Sricity Project of the company has come into operation in the month of March 2017 for
manufacturing of Corrugated Boxes. This unit is situated on 10 acres of Lease Hold Land (99 years) at
Sathyavedu Sub-District, Varadaiahpalem Mandal, Racheria Panchayat of Mopurupali Village, Chittoor
District, Andhra Pradesh and this unit is eligible for tax benefits as specified in Section 32AD of the
Income Tax Act, 1961.

Sundry debit and credit balances appearing in the Balance Sheet are subject to confirmation of
respective parties and consequent reconciliation thereof, adjustment of the same, if any, would be
accounted for as and when ascertained,

In the opinion of the Board of Directors, the Current Assets, Loans and Advances are of the value as
stated if realised in ordinary course of business.

Detail of pending litigations are as under:

Sales tax demand of F.¥Y. 2010-11 of Unit situated in Himachal Pradesh amounting to Rs.13,14,445/- has
not been deposited on account of dispute lying pending for disposal with Additional Excise and Taxation
Commissioner-cum-Appellate Authority, Himachal Pradesh.

Sales Tax assessment of units of the company situated in different states have been completed up to
Financial Year 2016-17 except units situated in the state of Haryana, the assessment of which has been
completed upto the F.Y. 2015-16.

The Income Tax Assessement u/fs 143(3) of the Income Tax Act, 1961 has been completed up to AY. 2014-
15 and income tax demand of Rs.3,24,051/- is outstanding as on date pertains to AY. 2009-10 to AY.
2013-14, against which reguest for rectification has been filed with the dept and therefore no provision
has been made in the books of accounts.

The company does not have any pending litigations as on date except below:

- Ciﬁ._fii Writ Petition under Article 226/227 of the Constitution of India on dated 30.05.2019 has been filed
against Allahbad Bank for issuance of writ in the nature of mandamus directing the respondents to
refund Rs.30,84,753/- illegally charged on account of take over charges (Foreclosure charges) under the
garb of releasing the security documents on transfer of loan.

During the year, th has not entered into any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts.
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39. Derivatives:-
A) Hedged: The Company has not entered into Forward Exchange Contracts, being Derivative Instruments for hedge

-

purpose.

Buy or Sell As on 31.03.2019 Ason 31.03.2018 Foreign
(inRs)) Amountin (inRs.) Amountin Currency
Foreign Foreign
Currency : Currency
Buy 0 o - - NA
Sell 0 0 # - NA

B) Unhedged: The year end Foreign Currency Exposures that have not been hedged by a Derivative Instrument as
Cutstanding are as under:

As on 31.03.2019 As on 31.03.2018 Foreign
{inRs.) Amountin {inRs.) Amountin Currency
Foreign : Foreign
Currency Currency
a) Receivables;- 0 0 i} 0 -
b) Payables:-
Trade Payables 5588179 542502 7161644 559658 USD+RMB

Fareign Letter of Credit 0 0 Q 0 LsD
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Note 40 l
Related Party Disclosures: The information regarding Related Parties has been determined on the basis of criteria in Ind-AS-24 "Related Party Disdnsuﬂes“ and to the

extent such partles have been identified by the company, on the basis of information avallable with them. This has been refied upon by the auditors,

Az per Ind-As 24, the disclosures of transactions with the related parties are given below:
a) Name of Related Parties and description of refation
(1) Key Management Personnel and Relatives
{Only Relatives of Key Management Personnel with whﬁm the Compatvy had transaction doring the year are listed beiow)

5h. Shyam Sunder Khemka Sh. Rajesv Khambka Sh. Sanjeev Khemka Sh. Ashish Khemia
{Chairman cum Managing Director) (Whole Time Director) [Whaole Time Director) (Whole Time Director)
Smt. Chandra Kala Khemka %h. Deeptanshu Khemka Smt. Vandana Khemka Smt. Vandana Khemka
{Director) {Whole Time Director) [Wifie of Sh. Rajeev Khemka) {Wife of Sh. Sanjeev Khemka)
Smt. Ashima Khembca Ms. Mahima Khemka Mr. Vardaan Khermka Mir. Sarthak Khemka
(Wife of Sh. Ashish Khemka) (Daughter of Sh. Sanjeev  Khemka, (5an of Sh. Rajeev Khemka, Director) (Son of Sh.

Director) Sanjeev Khemka,

Smt. Sonlka Khemka
(Wife of Sh. Deeptanshu Khemka)

b} Entities where significant influence is exercised by Key Management Persannel and/or their relatives having transactions with the Company :

Ginni Packaging (P} Limited KCL Milk Prodicts India Private Limited Food & Healthcare Specialities
Khemka Packaging (P) Limited ‘ (Prop. Sh Shyam Sunder Khemka)
Khemka Leasing (P) Umited
i
Particulars Key Management Personnel Othe Parties which.
and their Relatives significantly influence [ are
influenced by the Company
- {either individually or with
others)
31/03/2019 31/03/2018 31/03/2019 31/03/2018
Amount (Rs.) Amount {Rs.) Amount (Rs.) Amaount (Rs.)
a) Rent Paid GLE000D GLR0000 1200000 1200000
b} Remuneraticn Paid 23830200 23949150 - -
¢} Consultancy Chagres 600000 —— - -

d} Inter-Corporate Deposit paid/given - e

e} Unsecured Loans taken/received 85350000 66963584 - -
f} Unsecured Loans repaid 61317650 4700000 - 1301061
g} Other Payment - Sy 1167859 11295342
h) Balance outstanding at the year end .

- Receivables - - 97358055 96120196

- Payables 115217093 B8331742 ase =
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Note 41

Segment Information

The Company has identified the following two Primary Business Segments during the year ended 31st March, 2018

1. Packaging Products Engaged in Manufacturing of Corrugated Boxes and Duplex Board Cartons

2. Food Products Engaged inManufacturing of Food Products (Wafer Sticks, Extruded Cereals

Products, Ready to use Bakery Products, Glucose D & Dairy Products)
Primary Business Segments
Particulars Period Packaging| Food Products| Corporate & Total
Products Un-allocable

Revenue

Gross Turnover For the Year | 31-Mar-15| 2,928,995,332 | 165,871,417 3,094, 866,749
ended 31-Mar-18| 2,494,235338| 214,747,168 2,708,982,506

Inter Segment Turnover For the Year | 31-Mar-19 125,727,986 " 125,727,986
ended 31-Mar-18 133,504,775 = 133,504,775

External Turnover For the Year | 31-Mar-1%| 2,803,267,346 | 165,871,417 . 2,969,138,763
ended 3i-Mar-18 2.360.730.563 | 214,747,168 2575477731

Less: Sales Tax For the Year | 31-Mar-19 . - E
ended 31-Mar-18 18,024 854 2,712,742 22,737,596

Less: GST RECOVERED For the Year | 31-Mar-15 331,047,052 22,721,233 353,768,285
ended 31-Mar-18 - - 218,090,781

Met Turnover For the Year | 31-Mar-19| 2,472,220,294 | 143,150,184 2,615,370,478
ended 31-Mar-18 2,341,705,703 | 211,034,426 2,334,649,354

Result

Segmerit Result

Profit Before Tax & Interest For the Year | 31-Mar-19 110,213,163 -8,646,231 -7.934,772 93,632,160
ended 21-Mar-18 193,935,636 -29,871,741| -21,460,329 142,603,566

Operating Profit For the Year | 31-Mar-19 93,632,160
ended 31-Mar-18 142,603,566

Interest Expenses Far the Year | 31-Mar-19 50,757,971
ended 31-Mar-18 43,578,700

Other Incame Forthe Year | 31-Mar-19 3,266,072
ended 31-Mar-18 4,310,540

Income Tax For the Year | 31-Mar-19 5,585,895
ended F1-Mar-18 17,161,937

Frofit From ordinary activities For the Year | 31-Mar-1% 37,288,294
ended 31-Mar-18 35,926,506

Add/Less:0CI For the Year | 31-Mar-19 751,604.00
ended 31-Mar-18 -133,030

Net Profit after Tax For the Year | 31-Mar-19 38,039,898
ended 31-Mar-18 35,793,476
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Other Information
Segment Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment Forthe Year | 31-Mar-19 887,512,807 | 114,369,055 28,384,608 1,030,266,470
ended 31-Mar-18 714,250,113 | 134,730,999 32,905,512 851,886,624
Intangible assets For the Year | 31-Mar-12 477,551 477551
ended 31-Mar-18 1140724 1940724
Capital Work In Progress k 118,670,828 1,979,132 25,210,730 145,860,690
171,889,857 1,979,132 25,210,730 155,079,759
Financial Assets
Investments For the Year | 31-Mar-19 5,611,480
ended 31-Mar-18 5578355 5,578,355
Other Financial Assets For the Year | 31-Mar-19 B616257 1453440 14013 10,083,710
ended 31-Mar-18 7215550 1453440 14013 8,683,043
OtherNon Current Assets For the Year | 31-Mar-19 - 711,271 711271
ended 31-Mar-18 19,230,177 711,271 19,941,448
Current Assets, Loans and For the Year | 31-Mar-19 705,923,501 43,112,232 | 144,836,864 B93,872,597
Advances ended 31-Mar-18 581,050,090 35,636,166 | 130,713,058 747,399,314
Total Segment Assets For the Year | 31-Mar-19|  1,721,200,944 | 160,913,859 | 199,157,486 2,086,883,769
ended 31-Mar-18]  1,494,776,591 | 173,799,737 | 195,132,939 1,863,709,267
Total Assets For the Year | 31-Mar-19 s 2,086,883,769
ended 31-Mar-18 1,863,709,267
Segment Liabilities
Non Current Liabifities As at 31-Mar-19 325,810,388 | 16,996,502 | 116,634,457 459,441,347
31-Mar-18 274,291,102 22,934,152 | 103,713,679 400,938,933
Current Liabilities & Provisions As at 31-Mar-19 708,423,487 24,724,694 | © 3,566,992 736,715,173
31-Mar-18 588,063,713 31,608,824 -9,589,554 610,082,983
Total Segment Liabilities As at 31-Mar-19)  1,034,233,875| 41,721,186 | 120,201,449 1,196,156,520
31-Mar-18 862,354,815 54,542,976 94,124,125 1,011,021,916
Total Liabilities As at 31-Mar-19 1,196,156,520
31-Mar-18 1,011,021,916
Capital Employed As at 31-Mar-19 686,967,069 | 119,192,663 78,956,037 850,727,249
31-Mar-18 632,421,776 | 119,256,761 | 101,008,814 852,687,351
Capital Expenditure As at 31-Mar-1% 208,345,653
31-Mar-18 210,458,026
Depreciation For the Year | 31-Mar-15 98,463,880 | 21,356,314 6,220,634 126,050,828
ended 31-Mar-18 103,294,208 25,450,480 8,844,497 137,689,185
Mon - Cash Expenses other than For the Year | 31-Mar-19 -
Depreciation ended 31-Mar-18

23,422
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42  Employes Bonefits |

a) Defined Contribution Plans

The Company has recognised § 5162 lats (FY %4932 lacs) as contribution to provident fund in Statement of Profit & Loss.

b} Defined Banefit Plans

Tha Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee wha has completed fue years o more of service gels a gratuity on departure at 15
days salary {last drawm satary] for each completed year of service, The scheme is Funded. The Company has also provided for Leave Encashment which

is unfunded.

The following tables summasize the components of the funded status and amounts recognized i the balance dheet for the respective plans {as per

Actuarial Valuation as'on 315t March 2015} =

The principal assumptions used In determining gratuity and keava liability for the Company's plans are shown below @

Leave encashment Gratuity
Particulars
As at
31-Mar-19 31-Mar-18 31-Mar-15 3i-Mar-i8
|Discount: Rate (based on the market yiebds availabie oo Government boads at the accounting] 7.75% 71.35% T65% 1.35%
date with term that matches thar of the habifities)
Salany increase [taking into account infiathon, senbority, promotion and other relevant factor) 5.00% 5.00% 50008 5.25%
Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets 175 .75 B.35% B.35%
'Withdrawal Rate (Per Annurm} - 18 1630 Years 5009 5.00% S.00% 5000
'withdrawal Rate (Per Annarn) - 30 to 44 Years 3.00% 3.00% JH| 30026
Withdrawal Rate (Per Annurn) - 44 1o 58 Years L0000 200 200 2008
Changes in the presant valee of Defined Benefit Obligation are a5 follows
. Amount in Rs.
Eeave entashment Gratuity
Particulars
s at
31-Mar-13 31-Mar-18 3i-par-13 31-Mar-18
[Present value of the ablsgation at the end of the year 1,782,351 056,117 10,025, 506 '3,?46\.51330]
Het Asgat | [LBH.bem'nil.td in the Balance Sheet 35 on B1st March 2019
Aumount in RS,
. Leave encashment Gratulty
Particutars
s at
31-Mar-13 d1-Mar-138 Fi-Mar-19 31-Mar-18
Present Valse of Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of the year 2,792,351 1096,11 10,018,506 9,746,513
Fair Valup of Plan Aspels - 11,730.574| 9,663,310
et Asset [ [Liability) recognized in the Balasce Shest (2,792,351 {2,096,117) 1,711,068 (83203
Bifurcation of Obligation at the end 31st March 201%
Armodent in Rs.
Leave encashrment Gratuity
Particulars Rat
31-Mar-12 B1-Mar-18 31-Mar-19 A1-Mar-18
Current Liability [Short Term) 418 897 FEE,BI6 1,383 435 1,568,722
|Man Current Liability (Long Term) 2,373,454] 1,809,221 B.631,470| BT 191
{Toml 2,792,351 2,056,117 10,019,906] 9,746,513
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43. Financial Instrument

The fair value of financial assets and lianilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged
in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liguidation sale. Comparision by class of the
carrying amounts and fair value of the Company's financial instruments that are recognised in the financial statements
are set out below.

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by cagatories as of 31st March, 2019 were as follows :

AmountinRs
5. No. Particulars Amortised Cost |Fair Value® ::::: CHIVIRE |t falvaiue
Assets
i |Investments 5,578,355 33,125 5,611,480 5,611,480
ii |Cash and cash equivalents 5,673,453 - 5,673,453 5,673,453
i |Bank balances other than (i) above 747,594 747,594 747,594
iv |Trade receivables 432,202,398 432,202,398 432,202,358
v |Loans 104,137,102 - 104,137,102 104,137,102
vi |Other financial assets 10,083,710 | - 10,083,710 10,083,710
Total 558,422,612 33,125 558,455,737 558,455,737
i |Liabilities :
it |Non Current Borrowings 422,565,408 - 422,565,408 422 565,408
iii |Current Borrowings 107,324,758 - 107,324,755 107,324,755
iv |Trade Payables 478,061,430 b 478,061,430 478,061,430
v |Other financial liabilities 142,531,633 - 142,531,633 142,531,633
Total 1,150,483,226 - 1,150,483,226 1,150,483,226

The carrying value and fair value of financial instruments by cagatories as of 31st March, 2018 were as follows :

Amountin Rs
5. No. Particulars Amortised Cost |Fair Value* ‘::lt::anwng Total fair value
Assets :

i |Investments - 5,578,355 5,578,355 5,578,355
ii |Cash and cash eguivalents 2,251,867 2,373,454 2,373,454
i |Bank balances other than (i) above 375,514 21,657,200 21,657,200
iv [Trade receivables 338,319,467 422,565,408 422,565,408
v |Loans 102,617,849 - 12,845,285 12,845,285
vi |Other financial assets 8,683,043 - 8,683,043 8,683,043

Total 452,247,740 5,578,355 473,702,745 473,702,745
i |Liabilities ;
i |Mon Current Borrowings 364,702,099 - 364,702,099 364,702,099
i |Current Borrowings 107,940,907 = 107,940,807 107,940,907
iv |Trade Payables 358,439,033 - 358,439,033 358,439,033
v |Other financial liabilities 139,796,659 = 135,796,659 139,796,659




i
7

N ? /

[Total | 970,878,698 | - | 970878698 970,878,698 |

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

1  The carrying amount of Trade receivables, Trade payables and cash & cash equivalent are considered to be the
same as their value due to their short term nature

2 The carrying amount of the financial assets and labilities carried at amortised cost is considered a reasonable
approximation of fair value.

The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments
by valuation technigue

lavel1: Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities

Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair value are

|2
v observable either directly or indirectly

Technigues which use inputs that have a sngmfh:ant effect on the recorded fair value that are not

Lavel 3 L. based on observable market data.
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44

Financlal risk management /

The Company's business activities are exposed to a variety of financlal risks, namely liquidity risk, market ricks and credit risk, The Company finance department is
responsible for developing and monitofing the Company’s risk managerent policies, The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and
anatyse the risks faced by the Company, to set and moniter apprapriate risk limits and controls, perodically review the changes in market conditions and reflect the
changes in the policy accordingty, The key risks and mitigating actions are abo placed before the Audit Committes of the Company,

Mianagement of liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Compary will face In meeting its obligations assoclated with its financial Fabilities. The Company's approach in rmanaging lguidity s
tor ensire that it will have sufficient funds to mest its Rabilites when due without incurring unacceptable losses. In doing this, managerment considers both normal
and stressed conditions. -

The fallowing table shows the maturity 2nalysis of the Company's financial iablifties based on contfactually agreed undiscounted cash fows zlong with Its carrying
vk as-at the Batance Sheet date:

Amount in Rs
Carrying Payable

Particulars Payable after 1 year Total
As at 31" March 2019
Eorrowings 647,792,350 | 225,226,982 A3 565408 647,792,390
Trade Payables 478,061,430 | 473061430 - 478,061,430
Other Financial Liakilities 24,629,406 | 24679406 - 24,629,406
As at 317 March 2018
Borrowings 581,056,732 217,254,633 364,702,099 581,956,732
Trade Payables 358,430,033] 358,439,033 5 358,439,033
Cither Financial Lizbilities 30,482,933) 30,482,933 B 30,482,933

Management of financial market risk

Financial rriarket risk & the risk of loss.of future earning, Faic values or futere cash fiows that may result from a change in the price of financial iestrument, The value
of & financial instrument may change as a result of change in the interest rates and other market changes that affact market risk sensitive instruments. Market risk
7% attritiutabie to alf market risk sensitive fisancial instruments inchuding Invenstment and deposits, payables and lgans and borrowings:

i’
The Campany manages financlal market risk through finance departrient, which evaludtes and apply the risk mitigation stiategy as approved by Audit Committee.
The means of cash sources, borrowing strategies, and ensuring compliance with market risk limits and policies are also monitored,

Management of credit risk
a). Trade Recéivable

The Compary i5 exposed to-credit risk from its operating activities {primarily trade receivables). Credit risk arlses from the possibifity that counter party may not be
abie to sentle their obligations 23 agreed, To manage this, the Company periodically assesses the financial reliakility of customers, taking into account the financial
condition, cUrrent etonomibc trends, and analysis of historical bad debts and ageing of accounts recenvable.

The Company considers the probability of default upon Initial recognition of assets amd whether there has béen a significant mr:rsase_lr. credit risk on an ongoing
basis through each reporting period. To assess whether there is 3 significant increase in credit risk, the company compares the risk of & default ocourring on the
asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as 3t the date of initial recognition. It constders reasonable and supportive forwerd-lpoking information.

The Company’s concentration of rlsk with respecct to trade receivables i low, as Its supply are made to the rencwned customers,
b). Other financial assets

The Coimpany Mmaintains expossne in cash and cash equivalerits, term deposits with banks and investrent b equity shares, The Company has given Inter-corporate
depasits (IC0) to its related partées amounting to Rs. 573.58 lacs (315t March, X018: Rs.861.9 lacs) .

The Company’s maximum exposurs to credit risk as at 31st March, 201%; 215t March, 2018 Is the carrying value of each class of financial assets.

Tiee figures for the previcus year have been restated, regfouped and reclassified wherever required to comply with the requiremaent of Ind AS and Schadule 1.

Mote 1 to 45 are snnexed to and form an integral part of the Balance Sheet as at 31st Mar 2013, Statement of Profit and Loss, statement of cash Hows and
statement of changes in equity for the year ended as on that

As per our report of even date attached Foi on behalf of the Board

For ROHIT BAID & CO.

|CHARTERED ACCOLINTANTS) e

FAN Mo.031122N SHYAM S0 KHE RAIEEY KHEMEA

{Chairman Cum Managing 4y} (Director)

;;Hi DN Mo 00103387 DiN Mo DO103260
_,.-""-.- 3 Lt AP

{CAROHIT BAID)

PROPRIETOR W

M.NO.535547 SANIEEY KHEMKA KHEMEA

Place : Faridabad- [ Director) { Director)

Date: !_D.H’S.NIH DiM Mo GD103285 DIN No 00103321




ATTENDANCE SLIP

Regd. Folio/ DP ID & Client ID

Number of shares

Name and Address of the member

| certify that | am a member / proxy / authorized representative for the member of the Company.

| hereby record my presence at the Thirty sixth Annual General Meeting of the Company be held on
Monday, the 30™ day of September, 2019, at 01:00 P.M. at the Registered office of the company
situated at E-292, Sarita Vihar, New Delhi - 110044.

Member’s/Proxy’s name in Block Letters Member’s/Proxy’s Signature

Note: Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the meeting hall. Members are
requested to bring their copy of Annual Report to the Annual General Meeting.



Form No. MGT - 11
Proxy form

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

KCL LIMITED

L74899DL1983PLC068008
E-292, SARITA VIHAR, NEW DELHI DL 110044
cs@kcl.co.in

Name of the member (s):
Registered address:
E-mail Id:

Folio No/ Client Id:

DP ID:

I/We, being the member(s) holding Equity shares of the above named company,
hereby appoint

1. NAME: e s
AdAress: ...
E-mail Id: oo,
SIgNAtUre: .o e

Or falling him/her

AdAress: ...ovveeeeieiececeeeee e
E-mail Id: oo,

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 36" Annual
General Meeting of the Company, to be held on Monday, 30" day of September 2019 at 01:00
p.m. at E-292, Sarita Vihar, New Delhi - 110044, and at any adjournment thereof in respect of
such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution No.

Ordinary Business:

To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2019,
statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended on that date and the Reports of the
Directors and Auditors thereon.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rajeev Khemka (holding DIN No: 00103260), who retires by
rotation, and being eligible offers himself for reappointment.

To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Deeptanshu Khemka (holding DIN No: 07484360), who retires
by rotation, and being eligible offers himself for reappointment.




To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a
Ordinary Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 139 and other applicable provisions if any of the Act and the
Rules made there under (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the
time being in force), M/s Rohit Baid & Co., Chartered Accountants, Faridabad, bearing Firm
Registration No 031122N with Institute of Chartered Accountant of India be and is hereby
appointed as the Statutory Auditor of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of the
Annual General Meeting for the financial year 18-19 to the conclusion of this Annual General
Meeting till the conclusion of next Annual General Meeting to be held in the year 2020, subject to
ratification by the Shareholders at every subsequent Annual General Meeting and to authorize the
Board of Directors of the company to fix their remuneration.”.

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Rajeev Khemka, Director cum CFO of the Company be and is hereby
authorized to do all such actions as may be required to give effect to the aforesaid resolution.

Signed this .................. day of .covevenennne 2019
Affix
Signature of shareholder Revenue
Stamp
Signature of Proxy holder(s)

Note:

This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
Meeting.
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